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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETREMES

| am pleased to present the results of U-Home Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the period from 1 April 2015
to 31 December 2015 (the “period”) to the shareholders.

RESULTS

To align with the financial year end date of the operating
subsidiary which is incorporated in People’'s Republic of
China ("PRC"),
year end date from 31 March to 31 December such that

the Company has changed the financial

the current financial reporting period covered a 9 months
period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015. The
comparative figures set out in this statement for last
financial year from 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015 may not
be directly comparable.

During the period under review, the Group recorded a
turnover of HK$57,003,000, representing an increase of
5.11 times as compared to HK$9,336,000 of the compared
favourably with the results for the full 12 months in the
last year. During the period, profit attributable to owners
of the Company amounted to HK$7,734,000, representing
an increase of 2.9 times as compared to HK$1,981,000 of
the compared favourably with the results for the full 12
months in the last year.

With the expansion of scale of the trading business, the
materials trading business has significantly upsized. The
profits derived from the trading business for the period
was HK$2,131,000 (31 March 2015: HK$484,000). The
profits derived from the consultancy and agency business
was HK$9,230,000 (31 March 2015: HK$3,651,000), which
reflected higher profit contributions and improved margins
from the consultancy and agency business in China. In
addition, the investment and treasury function contributed
HK$2,490,000 (31 March 2015: HK$704,000) for the
period, resulting from the fair value gain on its investment
property and the rental incomes.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the period ended 31 December 2015.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ITREMES

DEVELOPMENT AND PROSPECTS

On 9 April 2015, U-Home Oceania Pty Limited ("UHOL"),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, entered
into the sale and purchases agreement with Alphington
Developments Pty Ltd, a company incorporated in Australia
with limited liability (“Vendor”),
Vendor agreed to sell and UHOL agreed to acquire the

pursuant to which the

land use right over a land (the “Land"”) at a consideration
of AUD33,480,000 (inclusive of GST) (equivalent to
approximately HK$197,900,000). The Land is located
626 Heidelberg Road,
Alphington, Victoria 3078, Australia, which is a residential

in Part Alphington Paper Mill,

district situated at the suburb of Melbourne, Victoria,
Australia. Details of the transaction has been set out in the
Company's circular dated 29 May 2015. On 18 June 2015,
an ordinary resolution was passed at the special general
meeting in relation to the acquisition of the Land.

On 30 October 2015, U-Home Enterprise Development
Company Limited (“UHEL"), a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into an agreement with /L& s8121%
BB A7) (Jiangsu Yide Investment Company Limited*),
a company established in the PRC with limited liability
("Jiangsu Yide"), pursuant to which Jiangsu Yide agreed
to sell and UHEL agreed to acquire the Sale Capital of
O %A Z AR 2 3 (Wuhu Yizhou Trading Company
lelted ), a company established in the PRC with limited
liability (“Wuhu Yizhou”) which is principally engaged
in investment holding and leasing of properties for an
aggregate consideration of HK$122,600,000. The Company
has obtained written approvals on the acquisition from
U-Home Group International Limited and U-Home Group
Investment Limited respectively, which are a closely
allied group of Shareholders to dispense with such special
general meeting requirement. In relation to the transaction,
Jiangsu Yide irrevocably undertakes UHEL that the audited
net profit of Wuhu Yizhou for the three years ending 31
December 2017 will not be less than RMB18,000,000.

* for identification purpose only
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETREMES

On 30 October 2015 and 6 December 2015, the Company
entered into a letter of intent and a memorandum with
La Clinique de Paris International Ltd (“LCDPI") which is
mainly carrying out high-end health management, advanced
anti-aging, preventive and functional medical services
and sale of pharmaceuticals and health supplements. The
Company considers to acquire 60% of the issued share
capital of LCDPI, on the basis that the pre-money valuation
of LCDPI will not exceed HK$150,000,000 (the “Proposed
Acquisition”). The Company and LCDPI have conducted
further discussion in the Proposed Acquisition and reached
framework consensus. The formal acquisition and mergers
contract shall be entered into upon agreement on the
related details by the parties.

Looking ahead, the Company’'s management and | will
continue our hard work, devotion and pioneering efforts, to
drive continuous development and new strategic expansion
of the Company.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my deepest
appreciation for all staff of the Group for their excellent
contribution, thank our shareholders for their trust and
acknowledge our business partners for their support.

Zhou Xuzhou
Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 March 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEN WD T

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

Trading Business

During the period, turnover from the trading business was
HK$37,414,000, representing an increase of 30.95 times
as compared to HK$1,171,000 of the compared favourably
with the results for the full 12 months in the last year.
With the expansion of scale of the trading business, the
materials trading business has significantly upsized. The
profits derived from the trading business for the period
was HK$2,131,000 (31 March 2015: HK$484,000), mainly
due to the increase in trading of chemicals materials.

R&D and Project Management

The Group has commenced joint chemical and biological
researches with an R&D institution in Hong Kong since
2007. During the period, the segment results was a loss
of HK$6,000. The disappointing results of the operation
is mainly due to the existing R&D project is still under
development. The management is optimistic about this
business, actively promotes the existing projects and
continues to identify R&D projects with potentials.

On 23 July 2012, the Group entered into a technology
transfer agreement with Yunnan Jiwa Biotech Limited,
a company incorporated in China (“YJB"), pursuant to
which an aggregate consideration of RMB111,000,000
was payable by YJB upon satisfaction of the pre-condition
stipulated for each of the three phases of construction,

production and registration.

At phase 1, the Group shall transfer the technical
documents of the product technology to YJB within six
months upon signing the technology transfer agreement;
at phase 2, the Group shall assist YJB to construct
a production plant with its ancillary facilities for the
production of the pharmaceutical bulk materials products
to be qualified by the Group and YJB within a prescribed
construction budget, and the construction of the plant
was completed in July 2014 but the construction costs
has not been confirmed; and at phase 3, the Group shall
assist YJB to (i) commence full scale production of such
pharmaceutical bulk materials products at a designated
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEN WD T

production capacity and ensure that the production cost
of such bulk materials shall not exceed the prescribed
unit cost, and (ii) obtain the registration certificates
of such products as well as the certification of “Good
Manufacturing Practice” issued by the State Food and Drug
Administration of the PRC by no later than 31 December
2016.

According to the technology transfer agreement, invoices
of RMB40,000,000, RMB20,000,000 and RMB51,000,000
shall be issued upon satisfaction of the pre-conditions
set for phase 1, phase 2 and phase 3 respectively as
mentioned above. The above payment schedule may be
extended by mutual agreement between the parties to
the technology transfer agreement, while the maximum
consideration shall be subject to adjustment(s) if certain of
the above terms and conditions cannot be fulfilled in full.

Investment and Treasury Function

During the period, segment results amounted to
HK$2,490,000, representing an increase of 2.54 times as
compared to HK$704,000 of the compared favourably with
the results for the full 12 months in the last year, mainly
due to the fair value gain on its investment property. The
Group will continue to look for opportunities to invest in
treasury products that yield higher returns under limited
risk exposure.

Consultancy and Agency Business

During the period, segment results amounted to
HK$9,230,000, representing an increase of 1.53 times as
compared to HK$3,651,000 of the compared favourably
with the results for the full 12 months in the last year,
which was mainly derived from service income from
property consultation in Mainland China. The Group will
continue to seek opportunities for development in property
sales and consultation business in Mainland China.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEN WD T

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

Property Development

During the period, the Group has diversified its business
into property development in Australia. An agreement
to acquire a land at a consideration of AUD33,480,000
was signed by UHOL (a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company) and Vendor on 9 April 2015. The acquisition of
the Land constitutes a very substantial acquisition of the
Company under the Listing Rules. Details of the relevant
agreement are set out in the Circular of the Company
dated 29 May 2015.

The approval of the Foreign Investment Review Board
under the Foreign Acquisitions and Takeovers Act 1975 to
the Acquisition had been obtained on 19 May 2015. There
is no restriction that will affect the acquisition of the Land
negatively.

Acquisition of a leasing company in PRC

On 30 October 2015, UHEL entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Jiangsu Yide in relation to the
purchase of 100% shares of Wuhu Yizhou.

Wuhu Yizhou is a company established in the PRC with
limited liability, which is principally engaged in investment
holding and leasing of properties. Wuhu Yizhou has 38
commercial properties situated at Z2%E i # i R #71% 3R
FHAI A ¥ 417 (Commercial Pedestrian Street of Dong
Fang Hong County, New Zone of East Town, Wuhu City,
Anhui province, PRC*).

The Board is always committed to seeking opportunities
for new business and performance growth, as well as for
timely expansion of the Company's scope of operation
and investments. The Group intends to engage in leasing
of properties and may conduct trading business through
Wuhu Yizhou in the future should the opportunity arise.

*  For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEN WD T

Proposed acquisition of controlling shareholding in an
anti-aging business

On 30 October 2015 and 6 December 2015, the Company
entered into a letter of intent and a memorandum with
LCDPI which is mainly carrying out high-end health
management, advanced anti-aging, preventive and
functional medical services and sale of pharmaceuticals
and health supplements.

The board of directors and management of the Company
will continue to explore new strategic development
opportunities, strengthen corporate governance and
optimize business portfolio, in order to enhance the
corporate value of the Company.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity

As at 31 December 2015, cash and cash equivalents of
the Group totalled to approximately HK$197,347,000 (31
March 2015: approximately HK$52,208,000), of which
approximately 95.6% are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, 3.7% in RMB, 0.6% in US dollars, and 0.1% in

AUD. The increase in cash and cash equivalents is mainly
due to the funds raised from the Open Offer.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had aggregate banking
facilities of approximately HK$100,000,000 (31 March 2015:
approximately HK$100,000,000) and no banking facility (31
March 2015: approximately HK$100,000,000) was utilized.
The bank borrowings of HK$100,000,000 as of 31 March
2015 had been repaid during the period.

Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2015, the gearing ratio was 0% (31
March 2015: approximately 48%), calculated on the
Group's bank borrowings over the Group's total assets. As
of 31 December 2015, the Group had no bank borrowing,
the bank borrowings of HK$100,000,000 as of 31 March
2015 had been repaid during the period, while total assets
of the Group as at 31 December 2015 was amounted to
HK$335,293,000 (31 March 2015: HK$208,909,000). The
lower in gearing ratio is mainly due to the repayment of all
bank loans and the increase in cash balances.

FEEEZERERLF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEETNWEDTN

Credit risk

The Group has a pragmatic approach towards credit risk
management. New customers are usually not allowed to
purchase on credit and the payment conduct of clients
are monitored both to facilitate the determination of
credit limit as well as a control over whether new sale
deliveries should be made. The Group's sale staff and
marketing agents pay regular visits to customers to
promote the Group's products and at the same time would
update information on the clients’ credit worthiness. The
remuneration of sales staff and marketing agents are
structured so that there is goal congruence in maintaining
a robust credit risk management system.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2015, the Company had no capital
commitment (31 March 2015: Nil).

Charge on the Group’s assets

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had no bank loan.
As at 31 March 2015, the bank loans of HK$100,000,000
were secured by the Group’s pledged bank deposits of
HK$100,000,000.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2015, there were no guarantees given
to any banks or financial institutions by the Group (31
March 2015: Nil).

The Group was not liable to any material legal proceedings
of which provision for contingent liabilities was required.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEWRE

The directors are pleased in presenting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the
period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set
out in note 26 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the period from 1 April 2015
to 31 December 2015 and the state of the Group's affairs
as at that date are set out in the financial statements on
pages 40 to 131.

The directors does not recommend the payment of any
dividend in respect of the period from 1 April 2015 to 31
December 2015.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
during the period are set out in note 23 to the financial
statements.

RESERVES

Profits attributable to shareholders of the Company, before
dividends, of approximately HK$7,734,000 (31 March 2015:
approximately HK$1,981,000) have been transferred to
reserves. Details of the movements in the reserves of the
Company and the Group during the period are set out in
note 24 to the financial statements and the consolidated
statement of changes in equity respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2015, the aggregate amount of the
Company’s reserves available for distribution to its owners,
calculated under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended), was HK$233,054,000 (31 March 2015:
HK$33,325,000).

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company's securities.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The movements of property, plant and equipment of the
Group for the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December
2015 are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

EMPLOYMENT REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had approximately
60 employees. The Group’s remuneration policies are in
line with prevailing market practice and formulated on
the basis of the performance and experience of individual
employees. Apart from basic salaries, other staff benefits
included provident funds and medical schemes.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the period and up to
the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Zhou Xuzhou
Liu Lailin
Zhou Wen Chuan

Non-Executive Directors

Mao Zhenhua (Appointed on 5 October, 2015)
Chen Xuejun (Resigned on 2 October, 2015)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Gao Guanjiang

Chau Chi Wai, Wilton

Jing Zhang Brogle (Appointed on 5 October, 2015)
Lee Cheuk Yin, Dannis (Resigned on 2 October, 2015)

Pursuant to the Bye-law 87(1) of the Company, each
director is required to retire by rotation once every three
years and that one-third (or the number nearest to one-
third but not less than one-third) of the directors shall retire
from office by rotation at each annual general meeting of
the Company. Accordingly, Professor Chau Chi Wai, Wilton,
Dr. Mao Zhenhua and Ms. Jing Zhang Brogle will retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

M BEKRE
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DIRECTOR’S SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Zhou Xuzhou, Ms. Zhou Wen Chuan, and Mr. Liu Lailin
have entered into service contracts with the Company
respectively for an initial period of three years commencing
from 30 August 2013. Such agreements are determinable
by either party serving not less than three months’ notice
in writing to the other.

Mr. Gao Guanjiang and Professor Chau Chi Wai, Wilton
have been appointed as an independent non-executive
director since 30 August 2013. Such agreements are
determinable by either party serving not less than two
months’ notice in writing to the other.

Dr. Mao Zhenhua, has been appointed as a non-executive
director since 5 October 2015. Such agreement is
determinable by either party serving not less than two
months’ notice in writing to the other.

Ms. Jing Zhang Brogle has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director since 5 October 2015.
Such agreement is determinable by either party serving not
less than two months’ notice in writing to the other.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors has
entered into a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the heading “Connected

Transactions”, no contract of significance in relation to
the Group's business to which the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted

at the end of the period or at any time during the period.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S
INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

The directors and chief executive of the Company who
held office as at 31 December 2015 had the following
interests in the shares of the Company, its subsidiaries
and other associated corporations (within the meaning of
the Securities Futures Ordinance (“SFQO")) at that date as
recorded in the register of directors’ and chief executives’
interests and short positions required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (“Model Code"”) in the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”):

EERTETHRAERRND - 1HE
ROOREFzESZRER

RZTE—RAF+ZA=+—H8 RREH
REERAIFE 2GR EBEF EERFELT
LBZ/\E\%\ kEAgERMAras - AR K

FHELEMAA( ETAA]D) EmETA
%% TRFR HHEESFA([IRAE :Fﬁ'JJ)
ZHEEMBITHERRRIRERZAE - RNk
BEAZARRSEEREIEZTHRABRA
DR HWB AR REAMBEEZE(EERE
HREEED(TEHRBAERD])) 2 RHmiE
@A

Interests in issued Shares ERITRO 2 ER
Corporate Total number % of total
Name of Director Capacity interests of Shares held issued Shares
HERITRE
EEpE &% NRER BEZRGEAH HWEEL
Zhou Xuzhou Interest in controlled 1,425,629,530 1,425,629,530 57.95%
corporation (Note 1) (Note 1)
JEAEM ZEEEE 2 (Kt 1)
(B 1)
Ms. Zhou Wen Chuan Beneficial owner 1,332,000 1,332,000 0.05%
(Note 2)
Ehdllces ERBEBANGT2)
Dr. Mao Zhenhua Interest in controlled 100,000,000 100,000,000 4.07%
(Note 3)
ERERT ZEHEE 2 R
(K15#3)
Professor Chau Chi Wai, Beneficial owner 600,000 600,000 0.02%
Wilton (Note 4)
AEEHK EnBEBANZ4)
Note: Kiat
1. These Shares are held by U-Home Group International 1. % % & {5 B U-Home Group International

Limited and U-Home Group Investment Limited.

Limited 2 U-Home Group Investment
Limited #5748 °
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2. Ms. Zhou Wen Chuan is an executive director.

3. 100,000,000 shares are beneficially owned by Eagle
Best Limited. Eagle Best Limited is wholly owned
by Zhongchengxin (HK) Investment Services Limited
(“Zhongchengxin HK"), a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability. Zhongchengxin HK is wholly
owned by H {5 1% & £ R A A (Zhongchengxin Investment
Company Limited*) (“Zhongchengxin Investment”), a
company established in the PRC with limited liability.
Zhongchengxin Investment is owned as to 60% by 1t & s
B XA AF (Hubei East Asia Enterprise Company Limited*)
("Hubei East Asia”), a company established in the PRC with
limited liability. Hubei East Asia is owned as to 50% by Dr.
Mao Zhenhua, a non-executive director.

4. Professor Chau Chi Wai, Wilton is an independent non-
executive director.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme which was adopted on 24
September 2003 whereby the directors of the Company
are authorized, at their discretion, to invite employees
of the Group, including directors of any company in the
Group, and any suppliers, consultants or advisers who have
provided services to any company in the Group to take up
options to subscribe for Shares. The Share Option Scheme
shall be valid and effective for a period of ten years and
had been ended on 23 September 2013. The Company has
not adopted new share option scheme.

As at 31 March 2015 and 31 December 2015, no share
option was outstanding. No share options were granted
or exercised during the period from 1 April 2015 to 31
December 2015. During the period, no share options were
granted and all outstanding share options granted under
the Share Option Scheme were exercised.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2015, the Company had been notified
by the following person (other than the directors or chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2015 which were required to
be disclosed to the Company under Part XV of the SFO or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

* for identification purpose only
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EEERE

Interests in issued Shares SRITRMD 2R
Total Percentage of
Name of substantial interests total issued
Shareholders Capacity (Note 1) Shares
EE BT
ERaE RIDEZ
FERREE £ (Hist1) BOl
U-Home Group International Limited (Note 2) Beneficial owner 925,976,530(L) 37.64
U-Home Group International Limited (#/##2) EnBEAA 617,154,000(S) 25.09
U-Home Group Investment Limited (Note 3) Beneficial owner 499,653,000(L) 20.31
U-Home Group Investment Limited (#/:%3) EZHEBAA 333,102,000(S) 13.54
Yuhua Enterprises Company Limited (Note 3) Interest in controlled corporation 499,653,000(L) 20.31
FERBEEBRRAHF3) REHER EE 333,102,000(S) 13.54
CHFERMEREERAA Interest in controlled corporation 499,653,000(L) 20.31
(Anhui Yuhua Real Estate Development REEEE 2 333,102,000(S) 13.54

Company Limited*) (Note 3)
THFERMEREBRAR(MH3)

Yee Sheng Enterprises Company Limited (Note 3) Interest in controlled corporation 499,653,000(L) 20.31
FHEXBRAR(HH3) REHER ES 333,102,000(S) 13.54
Kambert Enterprises Limited (Note 3) Interest in controlled corporation 499,653,000(L) 20.31
Kambert Enterprises Limited (47:£3) REHEE Es 333,102,000(S) 13.54
U-Home Property (Group) Limited (Note 3) Interest in controlled corporation 499,653,000(L) 20.31
U-Home Property (Group) Limited (#7:#3) REHEE Es 333,102,000(S) 13.54
Shunda Investment Limited (Notes 2 and 3) Interest in controlled corporation 1,425,629,530(L) 57.95
Shunda Investment Limited (#7i22%3) REHER ER 950,256,000(S) 38.63
Mr. Zhou Xuzhou (Notes 2 and 3) Interest in controlled corporation 1,425,629,530(L) 57.95
BN EE(HF2k3) REHER ER 950,256,000(S) 38.63

* for identification purpose only

* EHER
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Notes:

1. The letter "L" denotes the person’s long position in the
Shares whereas the letter “S” denotes the person’s short
position in the Shares.

2. U-Home Group International Limited is wholly and
beneficially owned by Shunda Investment Limited which in
turn is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Zhou Xuzhou.

3. U-Home Group Investment Limited is wholly and beneficially
owned by Yuhua Enterprises Company Limited. Yuhua
Enterprises Company Limited is wholly and beneficially
owned by Anhui Yuhua Real Estate Development Company
Limited*. Anhui Yuhua Real Estate Development Company
Limited* is wholly and beneficially owned by Yee Sheng
Enterprises Company Limited. Yee Sheng Enterprises
Company Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by
Kambert Enterprises Limited. Kambert Enterprises Limited is
wholly and beneficially owned by U-Home Property (Group)
Limited. U-Home Property (Group) Limited is wholly and
beneficially owned by Shunda Investment Limited, which in
turn is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Zhou Xuzhou.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in note 29
to the financial statements also fell under the definition
of “connected transaction” in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, details of which are set out below. The Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements, where
applicable, in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Continuing Connected Transactions
Sale and Consultancy Service Framework Agreement

On 19 May 2014, Nanjing Tuoyu Property Management
Limited (“Nanjing Tuoyu”), a 100% owned subsidiary
of the Company and U-Home Group Limited (“U-Home
Group”), a company wholly owned by Mr. Zhou Xuzhou,
an executive director and controlling shareholder of the
Company had entered into a framework agreement.

U-Home Group is a company incorporated in the PRC
and a wholly owned subsidiary of Mr. Zhou Xuzhou, an
executive director and controlling shareholder of the
Company. U-Home Group is principally engaged in property
investment and development.

* for identification purpose only
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The annual cap amount for the transactions entered
into between Nanjing Tuoyu and U-Home Group will not
exceed RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$25,000,000), RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$37,500,000) and RMB40,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$50,000,000) for the three
years ending 31 March 2017, respectively.

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been
reviewed by the independent non-executive directors of
the Company who have confirmed that the transactions
have been entered into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company;

(b)  on normal commercial terms; or, if there is no
available comparison, on terms that are no less
favorable than terms available to or from independent
third parties; and

(c) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing
the transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 "Auditor's Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued
an unqualified letter containing the findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions as set out above. A copy of the auditor’s
letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

EHRBE_T—+tHF=ZA=Z+—HIL=
BEE MRABFEFEEEMITIURS
CERESENRBTERBBELERARKE
20,000,000 7T (FH & 7 £9 25,000,000 % 7L )
A K # 30,000,000 7t (48 % 7 937,500,000
BT ) & A R ¥40,000,000 T(HH & R 4
50,000,000 BJT) °
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during
the period. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased or sold any of the Company’'s shares during
the period.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’'s sales and
purchases attributable to the major customers and
suppliers respectively during the financial period is as
follows:

gﬁ‘&%ﬁﬁﬁ$ﬁﬁ2t$%

ARARAAGEE R EERBRD - NAF
SEERMEARRNHAREEERHER
NEMEARD

FEREFRHEER

RAFBHRAEA - BEITEFF RHERES
MIEEARE ZHERRBZERMT

Percentage of the Group's total

HAREE
Sales Purchase
BEET DL BHEEBEEHDE
The largest customer BAREP 59%
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFEF 89%
The largest supplier BAHER 72%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate hREERE R 99%

Other than as disclosed at note 29 to the financial
statement, at no time during the year have the directors,
their associates or any shareholder of the Company (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these
major customers and suppliers.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 132 of the annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance
cover for Director's and officers’ liabilities in respect of
legal actions against its Directors and senior management
arising out of corporate activities. The permitted indemnity
provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as
required by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong) when the Directors’
Report prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance
with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong).

FEEEZERERLF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
for its employees in Hong Kong and participates in a
defined contribution retirement scheme organized by
the PRC municipal government for its PRC employees.
Particulars of these retirement schemes are set out in note
3.14 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights in respect
of the shares of the Company under the Company'’s
Bye-Laws, or the law of Bermuda, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to
the Company and within the knowledge of the directors of
the Company, the percentage of the Shares which are in
the hands of the public exceeds 25% of the total number
of issued Shares.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO
Limited as auditor of the Company.

R RETE
AEMAREAEEERIANEARSH
B WAHPEESSEPETRNKIZ
EBEHETORRE B - BRAR SR8 25
EEAI B REN 3,14

BriEER
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2016 Annual General Meeting of the Company will
be held at 11:30 a.m. on 22 June 2016 (Wednesday) at
Theatre A, 22/F, United Centre, 95 Queensway, Admiralty,
Hong Kong and a notice of annual general meeting will be
published and dispatched in due course.

On behalf of the Board of Directors
Zhou Wen Chuan
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 16 March 2016
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board considers that good corporate governance
practices are crucial to the effective management of the
Group. The Company is committed to the transparency,
accountability and independence highlighted by the
principles of the Code Provisions in accordance with the
“Code on Corporate Governance Practices” and the revised
version of it which takes effect from 1 April 2012 (the
“CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
to protect the rights of shareholders and stakeholders,
enhance shareholder value and ensure proper management
of corporate assets.

The Board is of the opinion that during the financial period
from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015, the Company had
applied the CG Code as set out in the Listing Rules.

DIRECTOR’S SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code of Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as
its own code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the directors. On specific enquiries made, all directors
have confirmed that, for the period from 1 April 2015 to
31 December 2015, they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code and the Own Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board

The Composition of the Board ensures a balance of
skills and experience appropriate to the requirements of
the business of the Company and to the exercising of
independent judgment.

During the period, the Board consists of three executive
directors, one non-executive director and three
independent non-executive directors with a variety of
experience in management, accounting and finance; their
brief biographical particulars and their relationship among
the Board are set out on page 34 to 37 of this annual
report.
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Five board meetings were held for the period from 1 April
2015 to 31 December 2015 and the attendance was as
follows:

Board of Directors

EEEmE

Executive Directors
HITEE

Zhou Xuzhou
ENERA

Liu Lailin

BI7RES

Zhou Wen Chuan
J&X )

Non-Executive Directors

HHITEF

Gao Guanjiang

28T

Chau Chi Wai, Wilton

&R

Mao Zhenhua (Appointed on 5 October 2015)
ERENR-_Z-—AF+ALREZE)

Jing Zhang Brogle (Appointed on 5 October 2015)
RER(R-_ZE—AF+ARAAEEME)

Chen Xuejun (Resigned on 2 October 2015)
REFE(R-ZE—AF+AZHEIT)

Lee Cheuk Yin, Dannis (Resigned on 2 October 2015)
FER(RZE—HF+HZHET)

The Company has appointed sufficient numbers of
Independent Non-Executive Directors in accordance with
the Listing Rules, including those with accounting and
finance expertise. They have dedicatedly provided the
Company with professional advice with respect to the
steady operation and development of the Company. They
also exercise supervision and coordination to safeguard
interests of the company and its subsidiaries.

The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each Independent Non-Executive Director of his
independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all Independent Non-
Executive Directors to be independent in accordance with
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.
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The Operation of the Board of Directors

The Board oversees the Group’s strategic development,
and determines the objectives, strategies and policies
of the Group. The Board also monitors and controls
operating and financial performance in pursuit of the
Group’'s strategic objectives. All Board members have
access to appropriate business documents and information
about the Group on a timely basis. All directors and board
committees have access to external legal counsel and
other professionals for independent advice at the Group's
expense if they require it.

Four board committees, namely, the audit committee,
remuneration committee, nomination committee and
strategic committee have been established to oversee
particular aspects of the Group's affairs. The Board has
delegated the day-to-day management and operations of
the Group's businesses to management of the Company
and its subsidiaries.

The board had met five times during the period to discuss
and formulate overall strategies for the Group, review the
financial performance, as well as other significant matters
when board decisions were required.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

No corporate governance committee has been established
and the Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions such as developing and reviewing
the Company’s policies, practices on corporate governance,
training and continuous professional development of
directors and senior management, the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, etc.

The Board held meetings from time to time whenever
necessary. The company secretary assists in preparing the
agenda for meetings and ensures that all relevant rules and
regulations are followed.
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Minutes of every Board meeting are circulated to
all directors for their perusal and comments prior to
confirmation of the minutes at the following board
meeting. The Board also ensures that it is supplied in a
timely manner with all necessary information in a form and
of a quality appropriate to enable it to discharge its duties.

Every Board member has full access to the advice
and services of the company secretary with a view to
ensuring that Board procedures, and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed and they are also entitled to
have full access to Board papers and related materials so
that they are able to make an informed decision and to
discharge their duties and responsibilities.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Mr. Zhou Xuzhou is the Chairman of the Company and
is mainly responsible for the management of the Board.
Ms. Zhou Wen Chuan is the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company and is delegated with the authority and is
responsible for day-to-day management of the Group’'s
business, and the implementation of the approved
strategies in achieving the overall business objectives.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the Non-Executive Directors has entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of one year
or till retirement by rotation in accordance with the Bye-
laws of the Company, whichever is earlier.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company established a Remuneration Committee
on 1 September 2005 with written terms of reference as
disclosed on the Company's website. The Remuneration
Committee is responsible for formulating and
recommending remuneration policy to the board, as well
as reviewing and making recommendations on the Group's
share option scheme, bonus structure, provident fund
and other compensation-related issues. The committee
shall consult with the Chairman on its proposals and
recommendations, and has access to professional advice if
deemed necessary.
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During the period under review, the members of
Remuneration Committee are Mr. Gao Guanjiang, Professor
Chau Chi Wai, Wilton and Mr. Liu Lailin, Mr. Gao Guanjiang,
Professor Chau Chi Wai, Wilton are independent Non-
Executive Directors. Mr. Liu Lailin is Executive Director.
Mr. Gao Guanjiang is the chairman of the remuneration
committee.

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

To assist directors’ continuing professional development,
the Company recommends directors to attend relevant
seminars to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
All directors also participate in continuous professional
development programmes such as external seminars
organised by qualified professionals, to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills in relation to their contribution
to the Board. A record of the training received by the
respective directors are kept and updated by the company
secretary of the Company.

Mr. Zhou Xuzhou, Mr. Liu Lailin and Ms. Zhou Wen Chuan
being Executive Directors, Dr. Mao Zhenhua being Non-
Executive Director and Mr. Gao Guanjiang, Professor
Chau Chi Wai, Wilton and Ms. Jing Zhang Brogle being
Independent Non-Executive Directors, have attended
various seminars and meetings organised by such as
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute and Hong
Kong Institute of Directors to develop and refresh their
knowledge so as to ensure that their contributions to the
Board. All the Directors also understand the importance of
continuous professional development and are committed
to participating any suitable training to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills.
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During the period, the Remuneration Committee had held
1 meeting. Attendance of each individual member was as
follows:

Committee Member
ZEgRE

Gao Guanjiang
fSynan

Chau Chi Wai, Wilton
AER

Liu Lailin

Elp g

The emolument policies of the directors of the Company
were reviewed by the Remuneration Committee, having
regard to the Group's operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee
include consulting the chairman of the Board about their
remuneration proposals for other executive directors,
making recommendation to the Board on the Company’s
remuneration policy and structure for all directors’ and
senior management and the Remuneration Committee
has adopted the approach under B.1.2(c)(ii) of the code
provisions to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive directors
and senior management.

Details on the emolument payable to the Directors

is disclosed in note 14 to the financial statements
respectively.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company established a Nomination Committee on
1 September 2005 with written terms of reference as
disclosed on the Company’'s website. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing and making
recommendations to the board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment, re-appointment and succession
planning for the board members. The Nomination
Committee has the responsibility to consider and access
candidates for directorships on the Board based on their
characters, qualifications and experience appropriate for
the businesses of the Group.

The roles and functions of the Nomination Committee
include reviewing the structure, size and composition of
the Board at least annually, making recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement
the Company's corporate strategy, identifying individuals
suitably qualified to become members of the Board
and selecting individuals nominated for directorship
(if necessary), assessing the independence of the
independent Non-executive directors and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors and succession planning
for directors, in particular the Chairman and the chief
executive officer. In considering the nomination of new
directors, the Board will take into account the qualification,
ability, working experience, leadership and professional
ethics of the candidates, especially their experience in the
machinery industry and/or other professional areas.

During the Period, the members of Nomination Committee
are Mr. Zhou Xuzhou, Professor Chau Chi Wai, Wilton
and Ms. Jing Zhang Brogle, Mr. Zhou Xuzhou is Executive
Director. Professor Chau Chi Wai, Wilton and Ms. Jing
Zhang Brogle are Independent Non-Executive Directors. Mr.
Zhou Xuzhou is the chairman of the nomination committee.
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During the period, the Nomination Committee had held 1
meetings. Attendance of each individual member was as
follows:

Committee Member
ZEgRE

Zhou Xuzhou

IENEY

Chau Chi Wai, Wilton

&R

Lee Cheuk Yin, Dannis (Resigned on 2 October 2015)
FER(R_Z—RF+HAZHEE)

Jing Zhang Brogle (Appointed on 5 October 2015)
RER(R-ZZE—AFT+HARBEZT)

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible
for considering the appointment of the external auditor
and reviewing any non-audit functions performed by the
external auditor, including whether such non-audit functions
could lead to any potential material adverse effect to the
Company. During the period, the Group is required to pay
to the auditor, BDO Limited the following remuneration:

R ME

Nature of services

ZHR

Audit services

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee members comprise of Profession
Chau Chi Wai, Wilton, Mr. Gao Guanjiang and Dr. Mao
Zhenhua. Professor Chau Chi Wai, Mr. Gao Guanjiang are
Independent Non-Executive Directors. Dr. Mao Zhenhua
is Non-Executive Director. Professor Chau Chi Wai is the
Chairman of the Audit Committee who has appropriate
professional qualifications and accounting expertise. No
member of this committee is a member of the former or
external auditors of the Company.
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The audit committee’s primary responsibilities include
overseeing the relationship with the Company's external
auditor, review of financial information of the Group, and
oversight of the Group’s financial reporting system, internal
control procedures and risk management. The Company
has adopted a term of reference of the audit committee,
which complies with the provisions of the CG Code. The
terms of reference of the audit committee are available on
the Company’s website.

During the period, the Audit Committee had held 2
meetings. Attendance of each individual member was as
follows:

Committee Member
ZEgNE

Chau Chi Wai, Wilton (Appointed on 2 October 2015)
BAEER-_Z—AF+A_BEZRT)

Gao Guanjiang

[SpEnan

Mao Zhenhua (Appointed on 5 October 2015)
EREWVR-_ZE—AF+AREBEZE)

Chen Xuejun (Resigned on 2 October 2015)
MEF(R-_E—AF+A-HHT)

Lee Cheuk Yin, Dannis (Resigned on 2 October 2015)
ZER(RZE—RAF+AZHFE)

At the meetings held during the period, in performing its
duties in accordance with its terms of reference, the work
performed by the Audit Committee included:

(@) review and supervise the financial reporting process
and internal control system of the Company and its
subsidiaries;

(b)  recommendation to the Board, for the approval by
shareholders, of the re-appointment of the external
Auditor and approval of their remuneration;

(c) determination of the nature and scope of the audit;
and

(d) review the financial statements for the relevant
periods.
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STRATEGIC COMMITTEE

The Company established a Strategic Committee on on 5
October 2015 with written terms of reference as disclosed
on the Company’s website. The purpose of the Strategic
Committee is to conduct researches and submit proposals
to the Board concerning the long-term development
strategic and material investment decision of the Company.

Dr. Mao Zhenhua, Mr. Zhou Xuzhou and Mr. Liu Lailin were
appointed as members of the Strategic Committee and Dr.
Mao Zhen Hua has been appointed as the chairman of the
Strategic Committee on 5 October 2015. Dr. Mao Zhenhua
is Non-Executive Director. Mr. Zhou Xuzhou and Mr. Liu
Lailin are Executive Director.

During the period, the Strategic Committee had not held
any meeting.

RESPONSIBILITY ON FINANCIAL
REPORTING

Management provides financial information with
explanation to the Board to assist the Board in assessing
the financial position of the Company.

The board acknowledges its responsibility to present a
balanced, clear and understandable assessment in the
Company's annual and interim reports, other price sensitive
announcement and other financial disclosures required
under the Listing Rules, and reports to the regulators as
well as to information required to be disclosed pursuant to
the statutory requirements. The Board is not aware of any
material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

The reporting responsibilities of BDO Limited, the
Company’s auditor, are stated in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 38 to 39 of the Annual Report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible for advising the
Board on governance matters and also facilitates induction
and professional development of Directors. The company
Secretary reports to the Chairman of the Board. All
Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary to ensure that Board procedures, all
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.
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Mr. Shek Man Fai who is a certified public accountant
(as defined in the professional Accountants Ordinance)
was appointed Company Secretary of the Company since
26 April 2013. He has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training to comply with Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules for the period from 1 April 2015 to 31
December 2015.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board had conducted a review of the effectiveness of
the system of internal control of the Group which covered
all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition sent to the company secretary of the
Company, to require a special general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition.

Shareholder(s) of the Company holding (i) not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all shareholders
having the right to vote at the general meeting; or (ii) not
less than 100 shareholders, can submit a written request
to the company secretary of the Company stating the
resolution intended to be moved at the general meeting
or a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect
to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at a particular general meeting.

The above procedures are subject to the Company's Bye-
laws, the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and applicable
legislation and regulation (as amended from time to
time). Shareholders who have enquiries about the above
procedures or have enquiries to put to the Board may write
to the company secretary of the Company at the principal
place of business at Unit 2906, Tower 1, Lippo Centre,
89 Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong or by e-mail to
ir@yuyejt.com for the attention of the company secretary.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

To enhance transparency and effectively communicate
with the investment community, the executive directors
and senior management of the Company actively maintains
close communications with various institutional investors,
financial analysts and financial media. Investors are
welcome to share their views with the Board by sending
enquiries to ir@yuyejt.com.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEAERERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhou Xuzhou, aged 59, was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 30 August 2013 and
was appointed as the Chairman of the Company on 23
September 2013. He is the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Strategic Committee of
the Company.

Mr. Zhou obtained a Master of Arts degree from the
University of Wuhan (/£ X2 )in 1985. He is the founder
and chairman of the board of directors, chief executive
officer and the sole shareholder of F 2 £ E AR A 7
(U-Home Group Limited*). U-Home Group Limited is a
company incorporated under the laws of the PRC and,
together with over twenty of its subsidiaries, is principally
engaged in real estate development, hotel management,
property management and financial investment in various
cities in the PRC.

Mr. Zhou, through subsidiaries wholly owned by him, has
started his real estate business since 1992. Mr. Zhou is
primarily responsible for leading the strategic planning
and business development of U-Home Group Holdings
Limited and overseeing all key aspects of the operations
of U-Home Group Holdings Limited, including financial
management and project development business. He has
over 21 years of experience in the property industry. Mr.
Zhou is the father of Ms. Zhou Wen Chuan.

Ms. Zhou Wen Chuan, aged 32, was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 30 August 2013
and was appointed as a Chief Executive Officer on 23
September 2013.

Ms. Zhou obtained a master degree in Business
Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong
in 2011, and a master degree in Food Science and a
bachelor degree in Science in Food Nutrition and Health
from the University of British Columbia in 2008 and 2007
respectively. Ms. Zhou is the daughter of Mr. Zhou Xuzhou.

* For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEAERERE

Mr. Liu Lailin, aged 58, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 30 August 2013. He is a
member of the Nomination Committee and a member of
the Strategic Committee of the Company.

Mr. Liu joined Z B F ¥ E % B R 22 A (Anhui Yuhua
Enterprises Company Ltd.*), the immediate holding
company of U-Home Group Limited, in 1994. He is
currently a director and executive vice president of U-Home
Group Limited and the chairman of BN FEMEBEER D
7] (Chuzhou Yuda Property Development Company Ltd.*),
a subsidiary of U-Home Group Limited. Prior to joining
Anhui Yuhua Enterprises Company Ltd., Mr. Liu was the
assistant accountant of KEWMEBZEHEFREE(E AR (Datang
Xiangtan Power Generation Co., Ltd.*). Mr. Liu has over
17 years of experience in real estate management. He
obtained a Diploma of Management of Industrial Enterprise
from Hunan Radio and Television University in 1986.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Mao Zhenhua, aged 52, was appointed as a non-
executive director of the Company on 5 October 2015. He
is the Chairman of the Strategic Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee of the Company.

Dr, Mao is currently the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of China Chengxin Credit Management Co., Ltd.,
Professor of Renmin University of China and Chairman
of the Institute of Economy. Dr. Mao graduated from
Wuhan University with a doctorate in Economics. Mr. Mao
had carried out economic analysis and policies research
for Hubei Provincial Government, Hainan Provincial
Government and Research Office of the State Council.

Dr. Mao founded China Chengxin Company (“China
Chengxin”) in 1992. He acted as its General Manager,
Chairman and General Manager, Chief Executive Officer.
He was the Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of China Cheng Xin International Credit Rating Co. Ltd..
Under the leadership of Mr. Mao, China Chengxin has
become a company specialising in credit services and a
comprehensive enterprise group principally engaging in the
business of investing in banks, real estates and industries.

* For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEAERERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Gao Guanjiang, aged 63, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on
30 August 2013. He is the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee of the
Company.

Mr. Gao graduated from the Wuhan University (BUEAE)
with a Ph. D in Economics. Mr. Gao has over 20 years of
experience in commercial banking, investment banking,
business administration and securities and finance.

Professor Chau Chi Wai Wilton, aged 54, was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company
on 30 August 2013. He is the Chairman of the Audit
Committee, a member of the Remuneration Committee
and a member of the Nomination Committee of the
Company.

Professor Chau obtained a doctoral degree in business
administration, a master degree in business administration,
a bachelor degree in laws and a bachelor degree in science.
He is a fellow member of the Chartered Association
of Certified Accountants (UK). Prof. Chau currently the
Chairman of Pan Asia Venture Development Platform and a
Vice Chairman of Hong Kong Biotechnology Organisation.
He is currently an independent non-executive director
of Angang Steel Company Limited (H-Share Stock Code:
347; A-Share Stock Code: 898). He is also a Professor of
Practice in Entrepreneurship in the Chinese University of
Hong Kong and a Visiting Professor in the Asia University,
Taiwan. Prof. Chau has about 30 years of experience in
direct investment and venture capital.

FEEEZERERLF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

BYFYITES

BEIEE 63m R-T—=F/\A=*
HEZER/ARAZEIUIFRITESE - BA
ARRFMEEG TR RERZEEGKE -

BAERREABEXYRRELESEL
i BEAERBFRRT  RERTT THE
BRESFSR D ERER T F&R -

AEREE b4 R_T—=FN\A=1
HEZERARRRZEBIIFRNITESE - KR
BERZZBEQEE ARRFMEZEEKER
RELZEBEXE -

FAHERECRSIHEEE LM THERE
BEE ARETRURIEB LB - H
REBERHALAAGHAMAGEREE - AH
BAMZTRAIEREVYAZERLBELEY
MEmealE/E - RETEMRNDERAA
(HA IR 0 5% < 347 + ARRAR 17 X 5% : 898)
ZBUIFHTES - WIRETFAP AR
BAXEGHELRGETNASEEHE - A
BERERRENCEEATHABII0F



BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEAERERE

Jing Zhang Brogle, aged 41, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on
5 October 2015. She is a member of the Nomination
Committee of the Company.

Ms. Zhang is currently the Chief Executive Officer of
Edmond de Rothschild Group’s (“Edmond de Rothschild
Group”) Hong Kong branch. Ms. Zhang has over 16 years
of experience in private banking and asset management
industry. She is a Chartered Financial Analyst and holds
a Higher Economics Diploma and a Bachelor degree in
English Literature.

Prior to joining Edmond de Rothschild Group, Ms. Zhang
Brogle has founded her own wealth management company
focusing on multi-family office advisory services, and was
also head of Greater China at another Swiss bank Vontobel
where she set up its Asian private banking platform from
Hong Kong. She has also been CEO, managing director
and board member of Vontobel Wealth Management Hong
Kong. Prior to her Asian career life, Ms. Zhang worked
for UBS Wealth Management in Switzerland as a senior
advisor after serving 6 years at the Swiss bank Vonobel's
Asset Management as Investment Strategist, Fund Analyst
and Fund Portfolio Manager.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Shek Man Fai, aged 41, is the Financial Controller and
the Company Secretary of the Company. He joined the
Group in November 2006 and was appointed as company
secretary of the Company with effect from 26 April 2013.
He has over 20 years of experience in financial accounting.
He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Shek
holds a Bachelor Degree in Business Accounting from the
University of Lincolnshire and Humberside and a Master
Degree in Finance from the National University of Ireland.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B RS

|IBDO

FEE 1 +852 2218 8288
{#H : +852 2815 2239

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
FEEATHEER115E
TKEZF2558

www.bdo.com.hk

To the Shareholders of U-Home Group Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of U-Home Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages
40 to 131, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2015, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December
2015, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

FEEEZERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

R

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2015 and of its financial performance
and cash flows for the period from 1 April 2015 to 31
December 2015 in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Tsui Ka Che, Norman

Practising Certificate Number P0O5057

Hong Kong, 16 March 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meREakAMEERSEE

For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H=ZE—hAFWA—BE-_T—HAF+-_A=+—HHHE

For the
period from
1 April 2015 For the
to 31 year ended
December 31 March
2015 2015
=]
—E-HF
mA-AE #z=
—E-—RE —ZT—hHF
+=A =A
=t+-—H =t—H
HARS IEFE
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
k=3 FET FEIT
Revenue Wz 6 57,003 9,336
Cost of sales and services provided 4% &2 IRIE A 2R (44,229) (3,854)
Gross profit EA 12,774 5,482
Other income EUgA 8 10,734 5,261
Selling expenses HEMX (54) (1)
Administrative expenses THER (7,816) (7,637)
Other operating expenses HhageE s (3) (2)
Fair value gain on investment LEMF 2 AT EWRE
property 16 2,000 —
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary e —EB AR 2 W 28 1,503 —
Operating profit KRR 19,138 3,103
Finance costs BhE& A AR 9 — (351)
Profit before income tax expense  K&Fr{E 8B < AT 10 19,138 2,752
Income tax expense FrS®if X 11 (11,406) (769)
Profit for the period/year HE REF 7,732 1,983
Other comprehensive income, Hit 2w - HBRBIE
after tax
ltem that may be reclassified HienEsfoizEs
subsequently to profit or loss: ZIER
Exchange (loss)/gain on translation 1R E 5N % 750 755k =
of financial statements of Z N (&), W
foreign operations (984) 42
Total comprehensive income for  H /A EWEAE
the period/year 6,748 2,025

FEEFBRARAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED



~ CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meEsaRkEMEEHWER

For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 20156 - Z—RAFMA—BE " T—AF+_A=+—HHH

For the
period from
1 April 2015 For the
to 31 year ended
December 31 March
2015 2015
=]
—E-—FEF
MA—HZE HE
—E-fF —T—hF
+=A =A
=+—H =+—H
HE IEFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k=3 FET FEIT
Profit/(Loss) for the period/year THIEBREMEE,
attributable to: FRRF,(FE) -
Owners of the Company RNATEE A 7,734 1,981
Non-controlling interests eI (2) 2
Profit for the period/year B FRRF 7,732 1,983
Total comprehensive income THEEEMZE KR
attributable to: wE
Owners of the Company RATEE A 6,750 2,023
Non-controlling interests VAR (2) 2
6,748 2,025
(represented)
(&=5)
Earnings per share BRER 12
Basic (HK cents) EARCEN) 0.38 0.11
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mE PR R

As at 31 December 2015 R—ZT—HF+_-_A=+—H

31
December 31 March
2015 2015
TE-AF kil
+=A =A
=+—H =+—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
k3 FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - HE REE 15 2,162 96
Investment property A 16 35,000 33,000
Intangible assets mEEE 17 776 1,392
Deposits by 20 32,609 8,861
70,547 43,349
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 18 513 161
Accounts receivable JfE U BR 3R 19 6,343 4,659
Deposits, prepayments and e BANFIEK
other receivables o fE W Sk IE 20 60,543 8,532
Pledged bank deposits BEEMIRITIER 21 — 100,000
Cash and cash equivalents HehReFEY 21 197,347 52,208
264,746 165,560
Current liabilities REBEE
Bank borrowings RITER - 100,000
Accounts payable FEfTBR R 22 2,368 —
Accrued expenses and other payables &I & F & E b FE (< 5108 8,768 10,595
Tax payables FEIREIE 9,242 1,075
20,378 111,670
Net current assets MENBEEFE 244,368 53,890
Net assets EEFE 314,915 97,239

FEEEZERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED



As at 31 December 2016 R—Z—FHF+_-_A=+—H

31
December 31 March
2015 2015
et T hF
+=A =A
=t—H =t—H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Hst FET FET
EQUITY L £

Share capital f& s 23 24,600 16,400
Reserves e 24 290,323 80,845

Equity attributable to owners RARHEEAEMLER
of the Company 314,923 97,245
Non-controlling interests IR S (8) (6)
Total equity A 314,915 97,239

On behalf of the Board
REESE

Zhou Xuzhou
BN

Director

EF

Zhou Wen Chuan

Ebdlll
Director

EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERERER

For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H=ZE—hAFWA—BE-_T—HAF+-_A=+—HHHE

For the
period from
1 April 2015 For the
to 31 year ended
December 31 March
2015 2015
2=
—E-1F
mA-AZE
—EB-—FEF H=E
t=A —T—hF
=t+-0 [EEREE
i IHFE
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
st FHET FET
Cash flows from operating activities K& EH2RERE
Profit before income tax expense B P15 854 B 2 A 7 19,138 2,762
Adjustments for: FEER
Amortisation of intangible assets miEES 17 559 886
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BENRETE
equipment 15 1,971 20
Fair value gain on investment WEMEZ
property RNHERE 16 (2,000) —
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—MKBARZ
W25 28 (1,503) =
Interest income MEMA (219) (251)
Reimbursement from former RERIARE 2 B E
shareholders 8 (9,852)
Interest expense B - 351
Operating profit before working EEESREA
capital changes FE—PiF | 8,094 3,758
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories FEOEM), W (352) 226
(Increase)/Decrease in accounts PR BRZR (38 00) R
receivable (1,988) 4,947
Increase in deposits, prepayments and &% - BN RIE K&
other receivables FL A W SRIB AL AN (11,277) (5,147)
Increase/(Decrease) in accounts FEfSBRFIE 0, (R )
payable 2,368 (8,506)
Increase in accrued expenses and other [EEH 2 3 & H i jE o
payables FRIFIE AN 6,294 7,438
Net cash generated from operations E&EELCHETE 3,139 2,716
Hong Kong profits tax paid, net ERBEMER - FE (2,640) 685
Taxation outside Hong Kong paid BENBBRIINGIE (483) (67)
Net cash from operating activities RETHEE2RSTFE 16 3,344

FLEERRARAT U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERERER

For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 20156 H=ZE—hAFWA—BE_T—HAF+-_A=+—HHHE
For the
period from
1 April 2015 For the
to 31 year ended
December 31 March
2015 2015
B
—E-hfF
MA—BZ
—E-FE BHE
+=A —E—hF
L=l = F=1—H
i IHFE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
e FHET FET
Cash flows from investing activities REZFEHZEERE
Net cash inflow on disposal of a HE—FHRBARZ
subsidiary REMAFRE 28 665 —
Deposits paid for acquisition WHENB AR ZEMiRe
of subsidiaries (24,250) —
Payments for purchase of a land use BE T FERETR
right (38,815) =
Payments for purchase of property, BEWE  BER
plant and equipment BN 15 (3,963) (52)
Payments for purchase of intangible BEEVEEMNK
assets — (2,278)
Decrease in pledged bank deposits EEBIRITERRD 100,000 6,214
Interest received EUF B 219 251
Net cash from investing activities RETHEE2ESTFE 33,856 4,135
Cash flows from financing activities REFEHZEERE
Proceeds from issues of ordinary BITEBERZETSFE
shares 23 210,928 —
Proceeds from bank borrowings IRITERZFTE5IA - 166,000
Repayments of bank borrowings BERITER (100,000) (165,992)
Interest paid BERFE — (323)
Net cash from/(used in) financing BEZBEL(FH) 2
activities Re&FE 110,928 (315)
Net increase in cash and cash ReRBESEEY
equivalents BnFE 144,800 7,164
Effect of exchange rate changes on ReRReEEMEXRES)
cash and cash equivalents ph-7 339 33
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning 81,/ F# 73R4 Kk
of the period/ year REEEY 52,208 45,011
Cash and cash equivalents at end of i/ F&2HER
the period/year HeZ%EY 21 197,347 52,208
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\
ATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

SE

For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2016 H—ZE—RAFMA—BE " T—AF+_A=+—HHH

Non-
controling
Equity attributable to owners of the Company interests

KIRHEARGRER L

Asset
Share  Contributed~~ Statutory revaluation Ace-

Share — premium® surplus’ fo Translaton  reserve®  umulated
cpial [ hote 240 reseve®  fote 240 losses? Total
L
ik ‘ i
iU ! | EERE! ) REEH &t
HKSO  HKSOD0  HKSOO  HKSODD RSO0 HKSOMO  HKSOOD  HKSOMO  AKSOOD  HKSOND
o o ot th B i B Bt T

At1 Apri 2015 H-E-1ERE-8 16,400 66,309 1091 149 l 20383 (9,659) 9.5 (6 925
s of e upon penafer e 2 RARRERERAM2) B s - - - - - m - mm
Proft o the perod EREH - - - - - - 174 174 (/A
Other comprefiensive income A
Exchange loss on ensatonof rancil statements  BENRERE A5 B 1 ER

of foregn operatons - - - - (984) - - (984) - (984)
Total compiehensiv ncome for theperiod SneEnasE - - - - (%) - 174 6% (/T
Appopriton o PRC sty reseme RnEErRE - - - il - - i} - - -
At 31 December 2015 H-8-FEtZA=1-A UR0 59837 1091 %69 (%2) 0% [y 3149 B 314

* total of these equity accounts as at reporting date represent ¥ RBEEAZZERRFRRBRESVBRR
“Reserves” in the consolidated statement of financial xRz
position
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§:£‘$IE )Er— BE-—Z—F4+—A=1—HHHE

For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H—

Nor
contrling Totdl
Equiy atributabl to onners of the Compeny nferests Uiy
FITRGNEEES HRE B
Asset
Share  Contibuted — Stautory revalafon i
Sare pemimtsuplist  resevet  Trndaton et umulted
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GENERAL INFORMATION

U-Home Group Holdings Limited (“the Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
address of its registered office is Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and its
principal place of business is Unit 2906, Tower 1, Lippo
Centre, 89 Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong. The
Company's shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal places of business of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”)
are in Hong Kong, the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") and Australia.

The Company is principally engaged in investment
holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries
include trading of health care products, chemical
materials and building materials, research and
development of chemical and biological products,
investment and treasury function, consultancy and
agency business and property development.

The directors consider the immediate holding company
is U-Home Group International Limited and the ultimate
parent is Shunda Investment Limited, both companies
are incorporated in British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) with
limited liability.

Due to the change of financial year end date from
31 March to 31 December in order to be aligned the
financial year end date of the Company's operating
subsidiary which is incorporated in the PRC, the
financial statements for the current period cover a
9 month period while the comparative amounts for
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity, consolidated statement of cash
flows and related notes cover a period of 12 month
period, and therefore they are not entirely comparable.

The financial statements for the period from 1 April
2015 to 31 December 2015 were approved for issue
by the board of directors on 16 March 2016.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 755 S o P

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 =% —

2.

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

The financial statements on pages 40 to 131 have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"),
("HKASs") and Interpretations (hereinafter

Hong Kong Accounting Standards

collectively referred to as the "HKFRS") and the
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In addition, the financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The

Stock Exchange.

The significant accounting policies that have
been used in the preparation of these financial
statements are summarised in note 3. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the
period/year presented unless otherwise stated.
The adoption of new or amended HKFRSs and
the impacts on the Group’'s financial statements,
if any, are disclosed in note 4.

[t should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparation of the
financial statements. Although these estimates
are based on management’'s best knowledge
and judgement of current events and actions,
actual results may ultimately differ from those
estimates. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
financial statements are disclosed in note 5.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 755 S o P

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 fF=Z—

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (cContinued)

2.2

2.3

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis except for
investment property which is measured at fair
value as explained in the accounting policies set
out in note 3.5.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and
balances between group companies together
with unrealised profits are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on
the asset transferred, in which case the loss is

recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the period are included in
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the dates
of acquisition or up to the effective dates of
disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with those used by other members of the

Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 755 S o P

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H=_ZE—hAFWMA—HEZ-_T—AF+-_A=+—H0HH)

e

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.1

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is
accounted for using acquisition method. The
cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of
assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity
interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer.
The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed are principally measured at acquisition-
date fair value. The Group's previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains
or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The
Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, to measure the non-controlling interests
that represent present ownership interests
in the subsidiary either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable
net assets. All other non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed
unless they are incurred in issuing equity
instruments in which case the costs are deducted
from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration
are recognised against goodwill only to the
extent that they arise from new information
obtained within the measurement period (a
maximum of 12 months from the acquisition
date) about the fair value at the acquisition date.
All other subsequent adjustments to contingent
consideration classified as an asset or a liability
are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 755 S o P

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H=ZE—hAFWMA—HEZ-_T—HAF+-_A=+—H8HH)

e

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.1

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Continued)

Contingent consideration balances arising from
business combinations whose acquisition dates
preceded 1 January 2010 (i.e. the date the
Group first applied HKFRS 3 (2008)) have been
accounted for in accordance with the transition
requirements in the standard. Such balances
are not adjusted upon first application of the
standard. Subsequent revisions to estimates of
such consideration are treated as adjustments to
the cost of these business combinations and are
recognised as part of goodwill.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amounts of the Group's interest and the non-
controlling interest are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and
any non-controlling interest. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 755 S o P

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 =% —

e

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.1

3.2

3.3

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary
is the amount of those interests at initial
recognition plus such non-controlling interests’
share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the
The
Company controls an investee if all three of the

Company is able to exercise control.

following elements are present: power over the
investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns
from the investee, and the ability to use its
power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances
indicate that there may be a change in any of
these elements of control.

Foreign currency

In the individual financial statements of
the consolidated entities, foreign currency
transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the individual entity using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the reporting date, monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at that date. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the reporting date
retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 755 S o P

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H=ZE—hAFWMA—HEZ-_T—HAF+-_A=+—H8HH)

e

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.3 Foreign currency (Continued)

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured at historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

On consolidation, all individual financial
statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the
Group’s presentation currency, have been
converted into HK$. Assets and liabilities have
been translated into HK$ at the closing rates at
the reporting date. Income and expenses have
been converted into HK$ at the exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates, or at the average
rates over the reporting period provided that the
exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly. Any
differences arising from this procedure have been
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in the translation reserve
in equity.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the
translation reserve relating to that operation up
to the date of disposal are reclassified to profit or
loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 755 S o P

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 =& —

e

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment
includes its purchase price and the costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost
of property, plant and equipment less their
estimated residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using straight-line method, as
follows:

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years
Leasehold improvements 1.5 years
The assets’ estimated residual values, useful
lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and its carrying
amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on
disposal.
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(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H=ZE—hAFWMA—HEZ-_T—HAF+-_A=+—H8HH)

e

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.5

3.6

Investment property

Investment property is property held either to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or for
both, but not held for sale in the ordinary course
of business, use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Investment property is measured at cost on initial
recognition and subsequently at fair value with
any change therein recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in business combination is fair value at
the date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Amortisation is provided on straight-line method
over their useful live as follows. Intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. The
amortisation expense is recognised in profit or
loss.

Computer system 3 years
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 755 S o P

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H=_ZE—hAFWMA—HEZ-_T—AF+-_A=+—H0HH)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.6

Intangible assets (Continued)
Impairment

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are
tested for impairment annually by comparing their
carrying amounts with their recoverable amounts,
irrespective of whether there is any indication
that they may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years.

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 755 S o P

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 fF=Z—

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.7 Financial instruments

(i)

FEEEZERERAA

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition depending on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired
and where allowed and appropriate, re-
evaluates this designation at every reporting
date.

All financial assets are recognised when,
and only when, the Company becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at
fair value, plus, in the case of investments
not at fair value through profit or loss,

directly attributable transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs
when the rights to receive cash flows
from the loans and receivables expire or
are transferred and substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
they are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 755 S o P

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H=_ZE—hAFWMA—HEZ-_T—AF+-_A=+—H0HH)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3.
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

BEASTHEBE &)

3.7 E®IEA(#E)

3.7 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i) Financial assets (Continued) (i) BIBEZEGE)
Impairment of financial assets R EZE

The Group assesses, at the end of each
reporting period, whether there is any
objective evidence that financial asset is
impaired. Financial asset is impaired if
there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that has
occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset and that event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include:

° significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

° a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

° granting concession to a debtor
because of debtor’s financial difficulty;

o it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; and

o significant changes in the
technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 755 S o P

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H=ZE—hAFWMA—HEZ-_T—HAF+-_A=+—H8HH)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.7 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

FREBZRERAR

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired, and is measured
as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of financial asset is
reduced through the use of an allowance
account. When any part of financial asset
is determined as uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account for the
relevant financial asset.

Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities include
accounts payable, accrued expenses and
other payables.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All interest
related charges are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

A financial liability is derecognised when the

obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 755 S o P

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H=_ZE—hAFWMA—HEZ-_T—AF+-_A=+—H0HH)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.7 Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Where an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender
on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a de-recognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying
amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Accounts payable, accrued expenses and
other payables

These are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts
or payments through the expected life of
the financial asset or liability, or where
appropriate, a shorter period.

3. ERETHEME®)

3.7 E®IEA(#E)

(ii)

(iii)

—“T-REFHR ANNUAL REPORT 2015

HBEEGE)

WRBEMBEEAR &R
ABERB IR Z GERIERZ
H—EREERNK - HEEA
BEZ ERERBER - BIZ
FEXRBAERRR /15 LLE
REREABYERFEE
mARKEmEEZBNIE

3¢y
= R ©

BEARZR - Bl BEA
KB fib fE (50 H

RNEREER  EBtEA
RE MM RIAY S RER
FEER  ERUNAEER
MEKIR B AG & -

ERFIFE

ERANEENAEMBEAR
ZEHERAEREBIR D
REAMBRX27E - BEF
RE BB EESIRL (1A
EA - AEER A ) A
F PR R AERE AT HI 40 FE A R 2R
BEWA -

61



62

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 755 S o P

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H—Z—HF M A—H

e

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.7

3.8

3.9

Financial instruments (Continued)
(iv) Equity instruments

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Share capital is determined using the
nominal value of shares that have been
issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the
issuing of shares are deducted from share
premium (net of any related income tax
benefit) to the extent they are incremental
costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost,
and subsequently at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is calculated
using weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash at bank
and in hand, demand deposits with banks and
short term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash which
are subject to an insignificant risk of change in
value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 755 S o P

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H=_ZE—hAFWMA—HEZ-_T—AF+-_A=+—H0HH)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.10 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a

series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the

Group determines that the arrangement conveys

a right to use a specific asset or assets for an

agreed period of time in return for a payment or

a series of payments. Such a determination is

made based on an evaluation of the substance of

the arrangement and is regardless of whether the

arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i)

(ii)

Classification of assets leased to the
Group

Assets that are held by the Group under
leases which transfer to the Group
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risk and rewards
of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases.

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use
the assets held under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease terms except where an
alternative basis is more representative of
the time pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased assets. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rental are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

3. ERETHEME®)

3.10 HE

HASKBIRE —BLH(H—IAK
—EEREZZHEK) B TR B
RHRER —BXZ B EEEMN
B —FREZEFIA - ABARALHE
BRHESHE - BRRENER
BEMEE ZFHEEL > MARAERE%R
BERBNAERAHEERN ©

(i) HBEFFEBzEEZLE

EHERERRZBRED
Rk Rk HRMER T AKE
AEBENHEREZEES
DERBEMERERS -
WEASEEE ZBARDE
e MR ER T ARKE2HE
EenBAKEHE -

(i) ERAREAZKREHEEA

HWARBEEREBELEHE
REZEEZERE AR
BHEXMNZHIASNEN
SIPN=R A =E E ]
Hr—EEBTRAREEE
EME LNz 2 BRI
Sh o FTEROERN B
RREHEFE 87D -
IRBENEEEZEH
B B Bk

—“T-REFHR ANNUAL REPORT 2015

63



64

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 755 S o P

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2016 H-Z—HFMA/—BE-ZT—

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.10 Leases (Continued)

(iii)

Assets leased out under operating leases
as lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases
are measured and presented according to
the nature of the assets. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised
as an expense over the lease term on the
same basis as the rental income.

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the time
pattern of benefits to be derived from the
use of the leased asset. Lease incentives
granted are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable. Contingent rentals
are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are earned.

3.11 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of

uncertain timing or amount when the Group has a

legal
of a

or constructive obligation arising as a result
past event, which it is probable will result

in an outflow of economic benefits that can be

reliably estimated.

FREBZRERAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 755 S o P

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 B —Z—HFM A —H

e

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.1

3.12

Provisions and contingent liabilities

(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, the existence of
which will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more future events,
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the
sales of goods and services rendered and the
use by others of the Group’s assets yielding
interest and rental income, net of rebates and
discounts. A single arrangement is separated into
its identifiable components if each component
has stand-alone value to the customer and the
fair value of the component can be measured
reliably. The consideration for the arrangement
is allocated to the identifiable components on a
relative fair value basis. Revenue is recognised
for each component of a single arrangement in
accordance with the Group's revenue recognition
policies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 755 S o P

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H=ZE—hAFWMA—HEZ-_T—HAF+-_A=+—H8HH)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12

3.13

FREBZRERAR

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised as follows:

— Sales of goods, including health care
products, chemical materials and building
materials, are recognised upon transfer
of the significant risk and rewards of
ownership to the customer. This is usually
taken as the time when the goods are
delivered and the customer has accepted
the goods.

— Consultancy service fee income is

recognised when the services are provided.

— Rental income is recognised on straight-
line method over the lease period of the
tenancy.

— Interest income is accrued on a time basis
on the principal outstanding at the applicable
interest rate.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets are subject to impairment testing and
are tested for impairment whenever there are
indications that the asset’s carrying amount may
not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset'’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs to sell,
and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessment of time
value of money and the risk specific to the asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 755 S o P

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H=_ZE—hAFWMA—HEZ-_T—AF+-_A=+—H0HH)

e

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13

3.14

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

For the purposes of assessing impairment,
where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent from those other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generate
cash inflows independently (i.e. CGU). As a
result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at CGU level.

An impairment loss is charged pro rata to the
other assets in the CGU, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less cost to sell, or value-in-
use, if determinable.

Impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the asset's recoverable amount and
only to the extent that the asset's carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation
or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

Employee benefits
Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution
retirement benefit plan under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF
Scheme”), for all of its employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of

the employees’ basic salaries.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 755 S o P

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H—Z—HF M A—H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Employee benefits (Continued)

3.15

FREBZRERAR

Retirement benefits (Continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in the PRC are required to participate in
a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of its
payroll costs to the central pension scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss as employees render services
during the period. The Group’s obligations under
these plans are limited to the fixed percentage
contributions payable.

Short-term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that
are expected to be settled wholly before twelve
months after the end of the annual reporting
period in which the employees render the
related service. Short term employee benefits
are recognised in the year when the employees
render the related service.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such
as sick leave and maternity leave are recognised
until the time of leave.

Income taxes

Income taxes for the period comprise current tax
and deferred tax.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 755 S o P

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H=_ZE—hAFWMA—HEZ-_T—AF+-_A=+—H0HH)

e

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.15 Income taxes (Continued)

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from
ordinary activities adjusted for items that are
non-assessable or disallowable for income tax
purposes and is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of
temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the corresponding
amounts used for tax purposes. Deferred tax
liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred
tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to the
expected manner in which the carrying amount of
the asset or liability is realised or settled and that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of reporting period.

An exception to the general requirement on
determining the appropriate tax rate used in
measuring deferred tax amount is when an
investment property is carried at fair value
under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless
the presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax
amounts on these investment properties are
measured using the tax rates that would apply
on sale of these investment properties at their
carrying amounts at the reporting date. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all the economic benefits embodied
in the property over time, rather than through
sale.
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(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H=ZE—hAFWMA—HEZ-_T—HAF+-_A=+—H8HH)

e

FREBZRERAR

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.15

3.16

Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss
except when they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income in which case the
taxes are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or when they relate to items recognised
directly in equity in which case the taxes are also
recognised directly in equity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the chief
operating decision-maker i.e. the most senior
executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations. Individually
material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers,
the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 755 S o P

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 =% —

e

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.17 Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a

party is considered to be related to the Group if:

The party is a person or a close member of

that person’s family is related to the Group

if that person,

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the
Company's parent.

The party is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions apply:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

the entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is
a member);

both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a
third party and the other party is an
associate of the third party;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 755 S o P

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 fF=Z—

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.17 Related parties (Continued)

(b)

The party is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions apply: (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); or

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are

those family members who may be expected

to influence, or be influenced by, that person in

their dealings with the entity and include:

(a)

FREBZRERAR

that person’s children and spouse or

domestic partner;

children of that person’s spouse or domestic

partner; and

dependents of that person or that person’s

spouse or domestic partner.

U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

G

AFEMA—BE_F

=R F 4 sl )

BEASTHEBE#)

3.17 BEAL(E)
BANTEMIGRG 2 EiEE

(b)

AEEA R

(v)

(vii)

(viii)

(%)

ZEREAAEE S EA
SEEREEEE
B FIz5 5% 3 2 BB AE A

a8l

% B 4 ;%iﬁ(a)ﬁfr a8 Bl A
HRZES

HHV
L
2 ,m]
2
Xl,

)() B 38 B A +
SARENR

S BN
[}

X

M»%MW
s
(413
W
i g
i
N2

RSB ZE
BRA(REEZ
ﬁﬁﬁKEliﬁ
AEERREREE
EIEAB R ©

=7 o
ol pr Eﬁ“@
N\,

FZBRALTZERBRB R ERHN

HERBETR S FEZBA

THZZBATHE L ZEREK

B - WHE:

(a) ZBALTZTFREEEHK
=

b) ZBALZEBRIRRBEBZTF
i &

(c) ZBALTHZBATZERE

EE] FA-L I



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 755 S o P

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H=_ZE—hAFWMA—HEZ-_T—AF+-_A=+—H0HH)

4. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs

4.1

4.2

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs —
effective 1 April 2015

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements

2010 - 2012 Cycle
HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements
2011 - 2013 Cycle

Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions

Amendments to
HKAS 19 (2011)

The adoption of these amendments has
no material impact on the Group's financial
statements.

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective

The following new or revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have
been issued, but are not yet effective and have
not been early adopted by the Group.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements 2012 - 2014
Cycle'

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative'

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements'

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments®

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers?

Note:

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR R MY R

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H=ZE—hAFWMA—HEZ-_T—HAF+-_A=+—H8HH)

4. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

4.2 New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Disclosure Initiative

The amendments are designed to encourage
entities to use judgement in the application of
HKAS 1 when considering the layout and content
of their financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 27 — Equity Method in
Separate Financial Statements

The amendments allow an entity to apply the
equity method in accounting for its investments
in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in
its separate financial statements.

HKFRS 9 (2014) — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial
assets. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is to hold assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows (the
business model test) and that have contractual
terms that give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding (the contractual cash flow
characteristics test) are generally measured
at amortised cost. Debt instruments that
meet the contractual cash flow characteristics
test are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") if the
objective of the entity's business model is both
to hold and collect the contractual cash flows and
to sell the financial assets. Entities may make
an irrevocable election at initial recognition to
measure equity instruments that are not held
for trading at FVTOCI. All other debt and equity
instruments are measured at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL").
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IR R

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H=_ZE—hAFWMA—HEZ-_T—AF+-_A=+—H0HH)

4. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

4.2 New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) — Financial Instruments
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss
impairment model for all financial assets not
measured at FVTPL replacing the incurred loss
model in HKAS 39 and new general hedge
accounting requirements to allow entities to
better reflect their risk management activities in
financial statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition,
classification and measurement requirements
for financial liabilities from HKAS 39, except for
financial liabilities designated at FVTPL, where
the amount of change in fair value attributable to
change in credit risk of the liability is recognised
in other comprehensive income unless that
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch.
In addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in
HKAS 39 for derecognition of financial assets and
financial liabilities.

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes
existing revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and related interpretations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT R AR

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H=ZE—hAFWMA—HEZ-_T—HAF+-_A=+—H8HH)

4. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

4.2 New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps
approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1: |[dentify the contract(s) with a
customer
Step 2: |dentify the performance obligations in

the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4:  Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

Step 5: Recognise revenue when each
performance obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on
particular revenue related topics that may change
the current approach taken under HKFRS.
The standard also significantly enhances the
qualitative and quantitative disclosures related to
revenue.

The Group has already commenced an
assessment of the impact of adopting the above
Standards and amendments to existing Standards
to the Group.

The Group is not yet in a position to state
whether these new pronouncements will result
in substantial changes to the Group’s accounting
policies and financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 755 S o P

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H=_ZE—hAFWMA—HEZ-_T—AF+-_A=+—H0HH)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below:

5.1 Fair value of investment property

As disclosed in note 16, investment property
is measured at fair value and revalued at the
end of each reporting period. The fair value is
determined with reference to valuation conducted
by Roma Appraisals Limited (“Roma”), an
independent firm of professional valuer. Such
valuation was based on various assumptions
which are subject to uncertainty and might
materially differ from actual results. In making the
judgement, the Group considered current price in
an active market for similar properties and used
assumptions that were mainly based on market
conditions existing at the end of each reporting
period.

5.2 Impairment on accounts and other receivables

The Group estimates impairment losses for bad
and doubtful debts resulting from the inability of
its debtors to make the required payments. These
estimates are based on ageing of its accounts
and other receivable balances, customers’ credit-
worthiness, and historical write-off experience. If
the financial condition of its debtors deteriorates
so that the actual impairment loss will be higher
than expected, the Group will revise the basis of
making the allowance and its future results would
be affected.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 755 S o P

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H=ZE—hAFWMA—HEZ-_T—HAF+-_A=+—H8HH)

S

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

5.3

5.4

Sale of technical know-how

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group
entered into multiple-element arrangements
when they sold its intangible assets to Yunnan
Jida Biotech Limited (“YJB"), an associate of
the Group disposed of on 23 August 2013. The
consideration of total arrangements has been
allocated to the deliverables based on their
relative fair values. The allocated consideration is
recognised as revenue in accordance with note
3.12. The Group's directors exercise judgement
to determine whether the arrangements comprise
identifiable components so as to apply the
recognition criteria to the separately identifiable
components of a single transaction in order to
reflect the substance of the transaction.

Determining whether the Group is acting as a
principal or as an agent in trading of chemical
materials

During the current period, the Group has
commenced its trading business of chemical
materials. The Group entered into a sale contract
with its customer in Hong Kong and a purchase
contract with its supplier in the PRC. The
Group engaged a service provider to repackage
the chemical materials when the goods were
shipped to Hong Kong to suit the customer’s
requirements. Management considered that the
Group took primary responsibility in arranging the
trading activities and has the latitude in setting
the selling price with reference to the sale
contract terms and the prevailing market price of
the chemical materials. The Group also bore the
customer’s credit risk for the amount receivable
from the customer.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 755 S o P

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H=_ZE—hAFWMA—HEZ-_T—AF+-_A=+—H0HH)

S

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

5.4

B

5.6

Determining whether the Group is acting as a
principal or as an agent in trading of chemical
materials (Continued)

Management of the Group considered that the
Group is acting as a principal in this trading
business because it has exposure to the
significant risks and rewards associated with
these sales of chemical materials and therefore,
gross amount of the sales and cost of sales of
these indent trading transactions were recorded.
In determining whether the Group is acting as a
principal or as an agent, management is required
to exercise significant judgement and to consider
all relevant facts and circumstances of this
trading business.

Depreciation and amortisation

The Group depreciates the property, plant and
equipment and amortises intangible assets in
accordance with the accounting policies stated
in notes 3.4 and 3.6 respectively. The estimated
useful lives reflect the directors’ estimates of the
periods that the Group intends to derive future
economic benefits from the use of these assets.
Management reassesses the estimated useful
lives at the end of the reporting period.

Estimated provision for the income tax and
related obligations

As detailed in note 11, the Hong Kong Inland
Revenue Department (“IRD") has initiated a tax
audit on certain subsidiaries of the Company.
The tax audit covers the years of assessment
from 2008/09 to 2013/14. The directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group has
made the best estimate of the provisions for
Hong Kong Profits Tax and related potential
penalty for the tax audit in the consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 20156 H—F—AFWA—HE_T—HF+_-A=+—HHH

S

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

5.6 Estimated provision for the income tax and

related obligations (Continued)

Provision for potential penalty

is recognised

in “income tax expense” on the consolidated

statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income and included in

“tax

payables”. If the final payment required for the

settlement of the tax audit is more or less than

expected, additional impact to profit or loss may

arise.

REVENUE

Revenue includes the net invoiced value of goods
sold and consultancy service fee income generated by
the Group. The amounts of each significant category
of revenue recognised during the period/year are as

follows:

D

BRIt hET R A E 2

5.6 FISHREREEZGFRERE)

BRI BB RN RS B
REMEERSERZ[FAEHAX]
Wt AT IR ] - /B E B
BERMAZREFBSNHDNTE
Hi o AR REH Ban EREEINEE o

Wz

W B RAREEEHERZERFE
REEZERRBEBRA - X EHEH
R/ FABRZKESENT

For the
period from
1 April 2015 For the
to 31 year ended
December 31 March
2015 2015
A
—2-RF
mA—BZE HE
TE-IF s
+=A =A
Sh =+—H
i IHFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Sales of health care products BEREEM 763 1,171
Sales of chemical materials BELEME 33,518 —
Sales of building materials BEZEMR 3,133 —
Consultancy service fee income BRI RS B U A 19,589 8,165
57,003 9,336
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 755 S o P

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H-E—hAFWMA—HEZ-_T—AF+-_A=+—HHHE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the regular
internal financial information reported to the executive
directors. The executive directors based on their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of the
performance of those components on these reports.
The business components in the internal financial
information reported to the executive directors are
determined following the Group’s major product and
service lines.

For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December
2015, the Group has five (31 March 2015: four)
reportable segments. The segments are managed
separately as each business offers different products
and services and requires different business strategies.
The following summary describes the operations in
each of the Group's reportable segments:

()  Trading of health care products, chemical
materials and building materials — Trading of
health care products, chemical materials and
building materials

(i)  Research and development — Research and
development of chemical and biological products

(i) Investment and treasury function — Investment
holding and treasury function

(iv) Consultancy and agency business — Provision for
property agency and consultancy service

(v) Property development — Development of
residential properties
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as
those used in its financial statements prepared under
HKFRSs, except that:

— finance costs incurred on corporate borrowings
— income tax expense

— corporate income and expenses which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of
any operating segment

are not included in arriving at the operating results of
the operating segment.

Segment assets include all assets but exclude tax
recoverable. In addition, corporate assets which are
not directly attributable to the business activities of
any operating segment are not allocated to a segment
and the Group’s headquarters.

Segment liabilities include all liabilities but exclude tax
payables. In addition, corporate liabilities which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment and are not allocated to a segment.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to
reportable segments.
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* NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H—ZE—AFMA—HEZE " ZT—HFE+_-_A=+—HHH

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. aHER@®)
Segment revenue, segment results, segment assets TR DHEE IHBEERD B
and segment liabilities =R

Information regarding the Group's reportable segments
including the reconciliations to revenue, profit before
income tax expense, total assets, total liabilities and
other segment information are as follows:

ERAASER 2ROz ERN(BIEE
W BAAEHATESN  BELE 8
BREBENEMYBEMZHE)WAT

Trading of
health care
products,
chemical
materials Research Investment  Consultancy
and building and and treasury  and agency Property
materials  development function business  development
EE
REER
tERBR RER EBR
BENE  HARRER BRER EHAREH NELR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FAT FAT A7 AT AT
For the period from H-Z-%f
1 April 2015 to mA-A%
31 December 2015 ZE-1f%
T-A=t-H
B
Reportable segment 2RI HhE
revenue 37,414 - - 19,589 - 57,003
Reportable segment TERAHEN/
profit/(loss) (F8) 2,131 (6) 2,490 9,230 - 13,845
Employee benefit expenses EEEHF R
fincluding directors’ (piEEZH2)
emoluments) (2,209)
Exchange loss, net B lg 58 (536)
Secretary fee WEER (1,698)
Legal and professional fees EERZEER (922)
Gain on disposal HE-HHBARY
of a subsidiary W 1,503
Reimbursement from REFER EE
former shareholders 9,852
Unallocated corporate AL ON
income 280
Unallocated corporate ROELARR
expenses (977)
Profit before income tax  BRFFEHBE AT RA
expense 19,138

—“T-REFHR ANNUAL REPORT 2015



NETES TO THE FINANCIA‘L STATEMENTS
IS 3R 2K

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H—ZE—HA&FMA—BE " T—AFE+ _A=+—HHH

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. aHER@®)
Segment revenue, segment results, segment assets TR DHEE IHBEERD B
and segment liabilities (Continued) a®\#E)

e

health care

products,

chemical

materials Research Investment  Consultancy

and building and  andtreasury  and agency Property

materials  development function business  development Corporate
EE
RiEER
{LENHR RER BBk
BEME  WRREE HBER  EERERE NE%R R it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
71 T Tz 7z 77 77 77

For the period from  M=E-1f

1 April 2015 to mE-HE

31 December 2015 “Z-1f

(Continued) TZA=t-H

HHE)

Other information HfbER
Interest income from: FISHA :

— bank deposts —§itR - - - - - 1 1

— time deposits — B8R - - M - - - M
Amortisation of intangible B AEES

assets - - - (559) - - (559)
Depreciation of property, 1% BER

plant and equipment REnE - - (18) (1,953) - - (1,971)
Additions to specified BTERaEEL

non-current assets’ ' - - - 3,963 - - 3,963

FEEEZERABRAR U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED



" NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% ¥R 2R Y AL

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H—ZE—AFMA—HEZE " ZT—HFE+_-_A=+—HHH

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. aHER@®)
Segment revenue, segment results, segment assets TR DHEE IHBEERD B
and segment liabilities (Continued) a®\#E)

Trading of

health care
products,
chemical
materials Research Investment ~ Consultancy
and building and and treasury  and agency Property
materials  development function business  development
EE
REER -
LBHRE RER BRER
BRENE  HARAR BEEY EHEREXE EE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FEr FAr FAr TEn FEn FEr

As at 31 December 2015 R=—Z-1%

tZA=t-H
Reportable segment T2HIPEE
assets 4,632 3,089 66,577 30,525 38,957 143,780
Cash and cash equivalents B2 RKEE5ED 186,004
Other corporate assets ~ EMAREE 5,419
Group assets E@EE 335,293

As at 31 December 2015 H=Z-T&

TZA=t-H

Reportable segment T2HSHEE

liabilities 413 — 108 6,298 — 6,819
Tax payables B 9,242
Accrued expense and ~ [Ef B R

other payables EtER R 610
Other corporate liabilities  EHAFERE 3,707
Group liabilities EEER 20,378
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 755 S o P

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 20156 H—Z—AFWA—HE_FT—HF+_-A=+—HHH
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FREEZERARAA

U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. aHER@®)
Segment revenue, segment results, segment assets DEKE - DEHEE IBEERD B
and segment liabilities (Continued) a®\#E)
Trading of Research Investment Consultancy
health care and and treasury and agency
products development function business Total
RE BHR
BERRER RERFE BBES ERRIEER &3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET AT TET FET TET
Year ended 31 March BE-E-1F
2015 ZR=t+-BLEE
Reportable segment FEE: k6
revenue 117 — — 8,165 9,336
Reportable segment 2RI PEA/
profit/(loss) (B8) 484 (6) 704 3,651 4,833
Exchange loss, net ELEE 38 (1,073)
Secretary fee WEEE (806)
Legal and professional fees ZEREXER (113)
Unallocated corporate AABRAFRA
income 3,480
Unallocated corporate FARREET
expenses (3,569)
Profit before income tax ~ BRFFEH B X BT EA
expense 2,752



FIN L Eﬁéﬁﬁ‘ —
B -

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 - REMA B —T—HF+- A=+— B

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. TEERE)
Segment revenue, segment results, segment assets DI PHEE - SBEERS T
and segment liabilities (Continued) 8E(E)
Trading of Research Investment  Consultancy
health care and  and treasury and agency
products  development function business Corporate Total
RER BRER
EERRER  WRRFE BBER  EERERXH Rl szt

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK8'000 HK8'000 HK$'000
TET TET TAT TET TET TET

Year ended 31 March ~ BZ-B-1%

2015 (Continued) ZR=t-H
LEE(#)

Other information AtER
Interest income from: FIBHA -

— bank deposits — BITER - — = 1 31 32

— time deposits — EBRET = = 219 = - 29
Finance costs BERK - - (351) - - (351)
Amortisation of intangible  EF/BEZ

assets — — = (886) = (886)
Depreciation of property, 1% * MER

plant and equipment HENE (20) - = = = 20)
Additions to specified ~ HEERBEEZ

non-current assets’ ' 13 — 39 2278 - 2330
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 755 S o P

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 20156 H—Z—AFWA—HE_FT—HF+_-A=+—HHH

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. oEERE)
Segment revenue, segment results, segment assets DEKE - DEHEE IBEERD B
and segment liabilities (Continued) a®\#E)
Trading of Investment Consultancy
health care Research and and treasury and agency
products development function business Total
RE& BRR
EERRER N BHER EHAREH it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT AT

As at 31 March 2015 RZE-%f&

=A=t-A

Reportable segment 2RI PEE
assets 1,587 3,089 179,247 9,352 193,275
Cash and cash equivalents R4 RRE5EY 2,516
Other corporate assets HtRAEE 13,118
Group assets E@EE 208,909

As at 31 March 2015 R-E-1f

ZA=t-A

Reportable segment 2R HER

liabilities 207 - 102,781 2,162 105,150
Tax payables JERHE 1,075
Accrued expense and EERR

other payables H R 5,445
Group liabilities £EAE 111,670
# Including the Group's property, plant and equipment, * PREAEEZME  BERRE - &

intangible assets and investment property. FHEEREEYE -

88 F¥EEERARAT U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H—ZE—AFMA—HEZE " ZT—HFE+_-_A=+—HHH

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. HBERE)
Geographical information ith & & R}
An analysis of the Group’s property, plant and REBIREEERNUEBEE T Z2HEZ D
equipment, investment property and intangible assets ZYE - BENMKE KREVENER
(i.e. specified non-current assets) by geographical BE(BEEIERBEE)SITWT -

locations, determined based on physical location of the
assets, is as follows:

31 31
December March
2015 2015
et TN
+=A =
=+-—H =+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TFET
Hong Kong (place of domicile) EF5 (GEfh2h) 35,078 33,096
The PRC (excluding Hong Kong) HER(TBEEE) 2,860 1,392
37,938 34,488
The following table provides an analysis of the Group's TREYAEFRKEINEEZL 2 W H 2
revenue from external customers: SHT

For the

period from
1 April 2015 For the
to 31 year ended
December 31 March

2015 2015
H-B—HF
mA—BZE H5HE
—E-FRfF —T—hfF
+=8 =A
Sh =+—H
2R LLFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEr
Hong Kong B 34,281 1,171
The PRC (excluding Hong Kong) FE(TBERES) 22,722 8,165
57,003 9,336
The geographic location of customers is based on EPREHIAR & Mk iR AR 2 i
the location at which the goods and services were 2 A EE o

delivered or rendered.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Information about major customers

Revenue for the current financial period from one
(for the year ended 31 March 2015: one) customer of
the Group’s trading of health care products, chemical
materials and building materials segment amounted
to HK$33,518,000 (for the year ended 31 March 2015:
HK$1,171,000), which represent 59% (for the year
ended 31 March 2015: 13%) of the Group’s revenue.

Revenue for the current financial period from one
customer (for the year ended 31 March 2015: four
customers) of the Group's consultancy and agency
segment amounted to HK$6,903,000 (for the year
ended 31 March 2015: HK$3,446,000, HK$2,532,000,
HK$1,115,000 and HK$1,072,000), which represent
12% (for the year ended 31 March 2015: 37%, 27 %,
12% and 11%) of the Group’'s revenue.

As at 31 December 2015, amount due from the largest
customer accounted for 11% (31 March 2015: 45%) of
the Group's total accounts receivable balances.

FEEEZERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 755 S o P

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 20156 H—Z—AFWA—HE_FT—HF+_-A=+—HHH

DEER ()
ERIEEFE &%

AMBFEE  AEBEEREER &
B RBEEMB 2 —R(EHEZ
E-—RAFE=A=+—HLEFEE: —4A)
BFEA 2z £33,518,0007% T (F
E_ETE—RAF=ZA=+—"BILEFE:
1,171,000%7T) - (RSB 2 59%
(Hz2-ZE—HAF=HA=+—BItF
[ :13%) °

ATHEE  AEEEMREHERES
ny—Z(EBE_E-—HAEF=A=+—
HIEFEE: OB )BFPEEX2Z2KRER
6,903,000 T(HZ=_FE—HF=A
=+ — B8 1t F ¥ : 3,446,000 T
2,632,000/ 7T - 1,115,000 7T &
1,072,000 %7T) AR E K= 2 12%
(BE—_ZZ—RAF=A=+—HIL#F
B :37% *27%  12% K 11%) °

R_ZF—RF+-_A=+—8 Ek=%
AREP ZHIBIEAE B EKER R4 R E
B2 %(ZE—RAF=A=+—H:
45%) °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 20156 H—F—AFWA—HE_FT—HF+_-A=+—HHH

8.

OTHER INCOME 8. Hfulg A
For the
period from
1 April 2015 For the
to 31 year ended
December 31 March
2015 2015
A
—E-HF
WMA—BZE #HZE
“E-RE g
+=A =A
=t—H =+—H
B IEFE
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FEr
Compensation from former IR RAREEBEE
shareholders on the shortfall of SFENCmMEE
net asset value of the Group 6 4,035
Interest income on bank deposits RITFE R FBWA 219 251
Reimbursement from former RERIARE 2 B E
shareholders (note) (H17%) 9,852 —
Rental income HEa WA 600 960
Sundry income Hab A 57 15
10,734 5,261

Note:

On 12 March 2013, the Company and Sunny Enterprise
Limited (“Sunny Enterprise”), a company wholly-owned
by former shareholders of the Company, entered into a
management agreement (the “Management Agreement”).
Pursuant to the Management Agreement, Sunny Enterprise
provided certain management services to certain of
the Group’s companies for a period of two years with
effect from 23 August 2013 and agreed to indemnify the
Company any damages, losses, liabilities incurred and
happened during the management period. The proposed
settlement of HK$9,143,000 as detailed in note 11 and
the professional fees incurred for handling the tax matter
of HK$709,000 will be reimbursed by Sunny Enterprise
in the capacity of former shareholders in accordance
with the terms of the Management Agreement. As of 31
December 2015, HK$2,640,000 has been reimbursed by the
former shareholder to the Group, the outstanding balance
of the proposed settlement of HK$6,503,000 is included
in “other receivables” in note 20. The professional fees
of HK$709,000 had been reimbursed during the current
financial period.

HiaE -

RZBE—=F=A+=-0 A2 FHELARQA
MRERZ2EHERAABEEARAA
([REBREDITVERBZE(ERHE]D -
BEERRZE  ABLCERAERETAA
REETEERE - AHEME BH=F—=
FNAZ+=HARBEHN YREHEIEHAM
EERLBZEMEE BARABRAAR
AIVEL BEE - 3 E (9,143,000 8 (518
BAMFINREERESEEECEES
F4 709,000 % 7T #% A AR5 1 2 ART AR R & 19
BEREEHZEZ GRIETEE - R=2F—A
F+ZA=+—8 " JIIREERAAEEEE
2,640,000 % 7T MR E N 2 RE B R
6,503,000 7 7T Tyt A BT 5 20 2 [ E Ath & U5k
TH | - BEEA 709,000 TR AMKREREE
EREE -
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R AR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H-ZE—AFMA—HEZ - T—HFE+_A=+—HHHE

9. FINANCE COSTS

9. BEMRA

For the
period from
1 April 2015 For the
to 31 year ended
December 31 March
2015 2015
B
—E-HEF
BA—BZ% D
“E-RF g
+=H =A
=t+—H =+—H
R IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEr
Interest charges on bank borrowings BARAFABRBEEZ
wholly repayable within five years RITEFRFEFAX — 351
10. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FRAT#E B a0z
For the
period from
1 April 2015 For the
to 31 year ended
December 31 March
2015 2015
2]
—2-HF
A—B#& H=E
TE-RE g
=+—§
IEFE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FEr
Profit before income tax expense is BT SR S ArE A B Rk
arrived at after charging/(crediting): (5t ) :
Auditor’s remuneration Z B AN EN & 596 500
Cost of inventories recognised as RERIZ 2 FERA
expense 34,879 708
Depreciation of property, plant and ME -« BEMRETE
equipment (note 15) (Ktat 15) 1,971 20
Amortisation of intangible assets | A EEH
(note 17) (Kiat17) 559 886
Employee benefit expenses (including EERAHEZ(REEEHE)
directors’ emoluments) (note 13) (H1a£13) 6,295 5,839
Operating lease charges in respect MEZCERERS
of premises 174 265
Exchange loss, net b 5 518 %58 536 1,073
Outgoings in respect of investment BB 2 R
property 110 150
Net rental income from investment EMEZ S WAFEE
property (490) (810)

FEEEZERABRAR U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SRR M

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H—ZE—AFMA—HEZE " ZT—HFE+_-_A=+—HHH

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1. FifSHimx
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate B - BANERE SRR T
of 16.5% (for the year ended 31 March 2015: 16.5%) #165% (HE-_T—HF=A=1+—
on the estimated assessable profits for the period. HIEFE : 16.5%) 2 ERIEL B -
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) has been provided CEMSHICEMSH DERRE
on the estimated assessable profits of subsidiaries Bl AL 7 BB A &) 2 A 5T HE AR B i A 4%
operating in PRC at 25% (for the year ended 31 March 5% (BE_T—RAF=-A=+—A8HL
2015: 25%). FE - 25%) ZTHREHEE -
For the
period from
1 April 2015 For the
to 31 year ended
December 31 March
2015 2015
A
—E-HF
WMA—BZE H=E
—E-hF —E—RF
+=8 =A
=t—H =+—H
A IHFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current tax REARGIE
— Hong Kong — BB
Tax for the period/year RERE, FERE 359 181
Under-provision in respect of BEFERBETR
prior years 9,123 3
9,482 184
— PRC — P E
EIT for the period/year AERE FELEREH 1,924 802
Deferred tax BT IE
Current period/year RNEBR S E - (217)
11,406 769
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The income tax expense for the period can be HA
reconciled to the profit before income tax expense in U
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other T~

comprehensive income as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
T R Y =

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H-ZE—AFMA—HEZ - T—HFE+_A=+—HHHE

1. 88X #E)

MBS HRAX REE
wmRZBEAEHAX

BamhHEMEE
A A2 $ R0

For the
period from
1 April 2015 For the
to 31 year ended
December 31 March
2015 2015
=2
—E—-FF
MA—HZE HE
et T4
+=A =A
Ear=1[ =+—H
Him IHFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit before income tax expense B BT 5 50 B s B A 19,138 2,752
Tax calculated at the rates applicable BRI A RER
to the tax jurisdictions concerned LG E 2 BiTH 4,002 765
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses — NAIHIFR S 2 B2 370 247
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BARGR R BB E (1,792) (99)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REERTIIEE B 2 B 2 591 463
Tax effect of temporary differences AEREHZE MG TE
not recognised (888) (126)
Utilisation of tax losses previously FRBERERZRIBER
not recognised - (267)
Others Hft — (217)
Under-provision in respect of prior BEFEBENRME)
years (note) 9,123 8
Income tax expense FrSHiH% 11,406 769

FEEEZERABRAR U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 755 S o P

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H-E—hAFWMA—HEZ-_T—AF+-_A=+—HHHE

11.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The Group has estimated tax losses arising in Hong
Kong of HK$3,971,000 (31 March 2015: HK$8,269,000)
that are available indefinitely for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in which
losses arose. Deferred tax assets of HK$655,000 (31
March 2015: HK$1,364,000) have not been recognised
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time
and it is not considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the tax losses can be
utilised.

Note:

The IRD commenced a tax audit on certain subsidiaries of
the Company covers the years of assessment from 2008/09
to 2013/14. During the current financial period, the IRD
issued estimated profits tax assessments of HK$2,640,000
and HK$2,970,000 to the Group relating to the years of
assessment 2008/09 and 2009/10 for the financial years
ended 31 March 2009 and 2010, respectively. The Group
has lodged objection with the IRD against the assessments.
On a complete without prejudice basis and in the interest
of time for finalising the tax position of the relevant
subsidiaries, on 15 December 2015, the Group offered a
settlement proposal for an amount of HK$9,143,000 as a
full and final settlement of the tax matter. On 23 December
2015, the IRD agreed that the relevant subsidiary can
holdover HK$1,683,000 of the tax demanded for the year of
assessment 2009/10, while for the amount of HK$2,640,000,
which was paid for purchasing the tax reserve certificate
during the current financial period by one of the subsidiaries
concerned for the year of assessment 2008/09.

The Group has provided various information and supporting
documents to address the enquiries raised by the IRD and
to defend its tax position (i.e. offshore claim in relation
to certain of its profits, as well as the tax deductibility
of various expenses). The IRD is still in the process of
reviewing the case and has not expressed any formal
opinion on the potential tax liability.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company and based on
their best estimate, the Group has made adequate provisions
for Hong Kong Profits Tax and related potential penalty for
the tax audit as at 31 December 2015.

11.

E8sEAX#)

AEBERBELEZHBATEEBEA
3,971,000 (= E—RAF=A=+—
H : 8,269,000 ) + A &R AR A {E R
EEEER T2 RRERT & A o
BRZEBRIREERHEBE B
PRIEA AAEEVYTRABARES
EXNHATEEBEZERT RN -
M BERZEEEREREEHEEE
655,000 T(ZE—hHF=H=+—
H :1,364,000/87T) °

MEBRBMARRZETHE AR ETH
BEZ BERE-_ZTTN\THLEE=-ZT
—=F/—NERBFE - RAPREE -
REBEDRBM=-ZTZT N ZTNER-_ZTZT
hNE/ —ZERFEFERALIEBBRHEBEE=
ETNER-ZT—ZTF=A=1+—HLEFK
£ [Z £ %8 /42,640,000 7T }.2,970,00055
T2 AET BRI - AEBME R ZSTMH
MEERIREE# EXE2THFERNFZNE
Y I BL e TE AR B MY B A RO RIS AR R B B
B R-Z—AFE+-_A+HA  KEHEIE
HFEEE R - £8/59,143,0007% 70 + ALt
EAZHESTENEEREEMNE RN=2F
—RE+=-A=-+=8  HEBERZIEEH
BRAANBH_-TTN —TFERREEE
SkE)FE B 1,683,000 7T ¢ M 2,640,000 7% 7T
DS - LWEAMBRAEMEES —HHE
RARZEENENERHEEBEFER
% °

AEEERBBRRELNEHEASEER
ReT#5XX - AR ELER B MOR (BN A B H i
FEBE = R R R Z IR X BIRHRD IR H 5
Rt o M RN A B ERETRE R A
BERGABEERENEAZR

ARREFR/LBEBERENRERR - R
“ZE-AF+-A=t+—H FEEEHRB
BEXATENEH KE@EES KRR
RS -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R AR

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 20156 H—Z—AFWA—HE_FT—HF+_-A=+—HHH

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. BRRER
The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable AR ERESZEEAEBLGEREARR
to the ordinary equity holders of the Company is based FITHRIA T BIEEF -
on the following data:
For the
period from
1 April 2015 For the
to 31 year ended
December 31 March
2015 2015
H
—E-AfF
MA—HZE HE
TE-RF s
+=A8 =A
Shi: =t+—H
A IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEr
Earnings 2|
Earnings for the purposes of basic AU ESRERZF
earnings per share 2 &BF 7,734 1,981
‘000
TR
(represented)
(FE5)
Number of shares ZEREA
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ FAMAGTE&ERER
shares for the purposes of basic Bz EEkK
earnings per share hntE 9 2,010,694 1,733,182

As set out in note 23, 820,000,000 offer shares were
issued on the basis of one offer share for every
two existing shares held on 24 August 2015 by the
qualifying shareholders at the subscription price
of HK$0.26 per offer share. The weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issued during the current
period was adjusted to reflect the open offer during
the period. Basic earnings per share for the year ended
31 March 2015 were represented to reflect the open
offer during the current period.

The share option scheme adopted by the Company
on 24 September 2003 is valid for a period of 10
years and had been ended on 23 September 2013.
No other potential ordinary shares are applicable to
the Company as of 31 March 2015 and 31 December
2015, accordingly, diluted EPS is not applicable to the
Company.

FEEEZERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

S anB 5F 23 BTk » 820,000,000 A% 25 &
BT EEASERBENR=
E-HENA-+NEBESFEEMBRIREG
D ES —RBERD  RBEAER
BERD0.26/8 T > NEM B BT E
BRZMEFHEHCELAE - AR
HAZ ARHEE HE_T—RHF=A
=t HUEFEZEREABIBELSE
Bl ARBLARHAR 2 AFBE -

AREAR_TZE=FNLA - THOAKRA
ZEBEEABERARTE  BE-T
—=FNAZT=AKX% - HEELWE
EEBER_Z—AF=A=t—H8K
—E-AFFT A=+ —HERARAR
A Elt - SREFRMNTERARAR
==



13. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’

‘\ . PN -

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H-E—HFWMA—BE-_E-—AFE+_-_A=+—HH~

13. EERARX(BRESHE)

EMOLUMENTS)
For the
period from
1 April 2015 For the
to 31 year ended
December 31 March
2015 2015
H=ZB—HF
mMA—RAE HE
—E-HF —E—RF
=yl - A =+—H
=t+—HHHE ILFE
HK$000 HK$'000
FET TET
Salaries and other allowances e RHAMER 5,311 5,148
Contributions to defined contribution TERBHERETE 2 itk
plans 984 691
6,295 5,839
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" NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R M

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H-ZE—AFMA—HEZ - T—HFE+_A=+—HHHE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 14. EEREREEEME

MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM&
Directors’ emoluments are disclosed as follows: BEEMEHEEWT

Contributions
to defined
contribution

Salaries and
other
allowances plans
ERMH
HEPALEN st
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET

FER
we Rtz

HK$°000
FET

HK$000
TEL

For the period from H-Z-HEFMA—H
1 April 2015 to E-E-1%

31 December 2015 TZA=t—-HHE
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Zhou Xuzhou a7 £ - 375 - 375
Ms. Zhou Wen Chuan Bzt - 225 11 236
Mr. Liu Lailin B ER S - 225 - 225
Non-executive directors ~ FHTEE
Mr. Chen Xuejun (note (iv)  FREBE%E(HzE(v) 70 - - 70
Mr. Mao Zhenhua (note (i) ~FEREE % £ (A7 (iii) 19 - - 19
Independent non-executive BIFHITES

directors
Mr. Lee Cheuk Yin, Dannis ~ ZE R4

(note (iv)) (Bt (iv)) 71 - - 71
Mr. Chau Chi Wai, Wilton BEELE 90 — - 90
Mr. Gao Guanjiang BEILE 90 - - 90
Ms. Jing Zhang Brogle RERX T

(note (i)} (K& (i) 19 - - 19

359 825 11 1,195

FEEEZERABRAR U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 755 S o P

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 20156 H—F—AFWA—HE_FT—HF+_-A=+—HHH

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

14. EEREREEBEMNE &)

(a)

EEMeE)

Contributions

Salaries to defined
and other contribution
Fees allowances plans Total
HFek EBHR
ik Hfth=28h FE 2R Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FET
For the year ended BE-E-I1F
31 March 2015 ZAET-HLFE
Executive directors BTES
Mr. Zhou Xuzhou =) bt = 500 = 500
Ms. Zhou Wen Chuan Ehdllces - 300 3 303
Mr. Liu Lailin BIPRER & - 300 — 300
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. Chen Xuejun (note (iv)) BREEFRE(HFE(v) 118 — — 118
Independent non-executive BIEHITEE
directors
Mr. Lee Cheuk Yin, Dannis ~ ZER%EA
(note (iv)) (Het(iv) 120 — — 120
Mr. Chau Chi Wai, Wilton — EFELE 120 — — 120
Mr. Gao Guanjiang BELEE 120 — — 120
478 1,100 3 1,581
Notes: Hiet -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

There was no arrangement under which
a director waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments during the period (for the year
ended 31 March 2015: Nil).

During the period, no emolument was paid by
the Group to the directors as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office (for the year
ended 31 March 2015: Nil).

These directors were appointed on 5 October
2015.

These directors resigned on 2 October 2015.

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

-z

BN BEEENEXRBERE
FAMEzZH@EE-_2—H
FZA=+—RHIFE: &)

Hn - ARETES NS TE
ZARSIEEMAREERIER
MAREEIR 2B - SAERBE
BowEBEBE—_T-—HF=H
=T —RLEFE: &) -

ZEEEN_T-AF+HAAR
XM -

ZEEEN_T-HF+HA-H
BHE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R AR

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H-ZE—AFMA—HEZ - T—HFE+_A=+—HHHE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were
the highest in the Group for the period included
three (for the year ended 31 March 2015: three)
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above. Emoluments payable to
the remaining two individuals (for the year ended
31 March 2015: two individuals) during the period
are as follows:

(b)

14, EEFHESREBEME 2

EEREHFMAL

BRAEELERRTMALTERE
=R BEZT-HF=A=t—
BIEEE: ZR)EF A2
REXZ5ZHTARER - BAE
NESKMAAL(BE-_FT—AF
ZA=+—HLEEE:MEAL)
ZBEmT

For the

period from
1 April 2015 For the
to 31 year ended
December 31 March

2015 2015
H-B—HF
mA—BZE #H=E
It L T RF
+=5 ELEREE
=t+— B IHFE
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries and other allowances 5o REAERL 1,000 910
Contributions to defined contribution EZ8#t 72| 2 3k
plans 14 18
1,014 928

FEEEZERABRAR U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ISR M

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 20156 H—F—AFWMA—HE_T—HF+_-A=+—HHH

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 14. EEREREEBEMNE &)

MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) HEEBRSHFMAL(E)
Emoluments of the two individuals (for the year ME(EE2-_T—HF=A=1+—
ended 31 March 2015: two individuals) fell within HIEFE : MB)ATZHE2ER
the following bands: AT EE :

Number of individuals

AE

For the

period from
1 April 2015 For the
to 31 year ended
December 31 March

2015 2015
H-Z-&F
mA—BZE HE
—E-FF —T—RF
+=F ==
=+—AHHE IHFE
Nil — HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 7T 2 2
No emolument was paid by the Group to the AEBBEMNESH AR 5
directors or any of the five highest paid individual ATEFRFEMAMATZMAEE @ B
as an inducement to join or upon joining the R 5| 1% 5 hn A A& B sk E A Il AR
Group, or as compensation for loss of office (for SEB mH - SIERBER 2 @E
the year ended 31 March 2015: Nil). (BE-T—h¥=HA=+—HL
FEE) o
The emoluments paid or payable to members of ENENSREREABZHEHE
senior management are included in the analysis R EXXFRY 2 5T o

presented above.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 755 S o P

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 20156 H—Z—AFWA—HE_FT—HF+_-A=+—HHH

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% ~ BMERRE

FREEZERARAA

Furniture,
fixtures and Leasehold
equipment improvements Total
Ri - £E
ST HEHE st
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FEr
At 1 April 2014 R-ZE—MFHNA—H
Cost (DN 552 — 552
Accumulated depreciation BEHTE (488) — (488)
Net carrying amount BREFE 64 — 64
Year ended 31 March 2015 HE-_Z—A1&
ZA=+—-HIHFE
Opening net carrying amount  ER¥IBREE(E 64 = 64
Additions NE 52 — 52
Depreciation (note 10) TEMRHZ10) (20) — (20)
Closing net carrying amount  HA/RBREH{E 96 — 96
At 31 March 2015 RZZE—hH%F
=A=+—H
Cost BAR 604 - 604
Accumulated depreciation ZEtiE (508) - (508)
Net carrying amount REHE 96 - 96
For the period from 1 April M-E—HFMA—H
2015 to 31 December 2015~ £E=F—FHF+_H
=+—HI1-5/E
Opening net carrying amount  HA¥IBRE H(E 96 - 96
Additions NE - 3,963 3,963
Depreciation (note 10) TEHF10) (18) (1,953) (1,971)
Exchange adjustment bEE 5 - 74 74
Closing net carrying amount  HI#REREFE 78 2,084 2,162
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—RF
+-A=+—H~H
Cost BRI 604 3,963 4,567
Accumulated depreciation 2EHTE (526) (1,953) (2,479)
Exchange adjustment b 5 S % - 74 74
Net carrying amount REFE 78 2,084 2,162

U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IR R

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 20156 H—F—AFWA—HE_FT—HF+_-A=+—HHH

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

16. BEWHE

31 31
December March
2015 2015
—E-HF —E—hF
T=AH =H
=+-—H =+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET

Fair value A¥E
At 1 April R A—A 33,000 33,000
Change in fair value NHEZH 2,000 —
At 31 December/31 March W+—A=+—H/ZA=+—8 35,000 33,000

The fair value of investment property is a level 2
recurring fair value measurement. The fair values of the
Group’s investment property as at 31 December 2015
and 31 March 2015 have been arrived at on market
value basis carried out by Roma, an independent valuer
who holds a recognised and relevant professional
qualification and has recent experience in the location
and category of the investment property being valued.

The valuation of the investment property as at 31
December 2015 and 31 March 2015 are determined
using direct comparison approach assuming sale of the
property in its existing states with the benefit of vacant
possession and by making reference to comparable
sales transactions as available in the relevant market.

The investment property is leased to Eden (Swiss)
Health Management & Consultancy Company
Limited (“Eden (Swiss)”) and Meilleure International
Health Management Company Limited (“Meilleure”),
companies controlled by a director of the Company, on

a lease term of 2 years and 3 months respectively.

BREMEZRAFER/RE _REEERTF
EtE R-_F—AF+-_A=1t—H
R—Z-—RF=RA=+—H xEER
BMEZATEHERB L GEMES
(BAERAREEEXRER  YHEER
MEAETIR B 2 3 R BRI TE(E
ZREB)EMEREETZAEER -

R_E—RF+-_A=+—BER=FE
—RFE=ZA=Z1+—8 REMEZGHE
DEAEELEE  BREMWETHRERLT
REHE  WELRENB@E TS LS
ZABLLBIHER S MERE o

BREMEBRTARAR —REEEH A
A]Eden (Swiss) Health Management
& Consultancy Company Limited
([Eden (Swiss) ) K 3 I B R 62 BR & 12
BRAR([ER]) - HHED R AMF R
=f&@A -

—“T-REFHR ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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A

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 A-F—HFWMA—BEZ-_E-—AFE+_-_A=+—HHM

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. B EE
Computer system
HK$°000
FET
Additions NE 2,278
Amortisation for the year (note 10)"  AFEE#E (A7 10)" (886)

At 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 R=-Z—AF=A=+—-HR

—E-RFEMNA—H 1,392
Amortisation for the period (note 10)° ZNERfSEESE (A7 10)" (559)
Exchange adjustment PE i (57)
At 31 December 2015 R=ZF—RF+=-A=+—H 776
# Included in administrative expense * ST ATTEE A
18. INVENTORIES 18. #&
All inventories held at the end of the reporting periods R|EHRR - FIATEHYAREER °

are health care products.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SRR M

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 B —Z—RHFPIH —

19. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 1)

The directors of the Company consider that the
fair values of accounts receivable are not materially
different from their carrying amounts because these
amounts have short maturity periods at their inception.

The Group generally allows a credit period of 30 days
to 180 days (for the year ended 31 March 2015: 30
days to 180 days) to its trade customers. Based on
invoice date, ageing analysis of the Group’s accounts
receivable net of impairment allowance is as follows:

BE_Z-HhF+-HA=+—HEH

FE W B R

B FE W AR SRR AT LB 2 B EAEARR AT
BARBEFTR/RETRAZAFER
HEMEYEEAER -

AEB-—RBRAEESEFRMHEI0BE
180 R (BEz—Z—RF=A=+—AH1Lt
FE 30BE180R)ZzEH - &
B BUERR(MBRRERE) BEBEER
HEAZ BRI DITIAT ¢

31 31

December March

2015 2015

—E-RF TR

+=A =A

=t+-—H =+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within 3 months =@AR 6,343 1,416
Over 3 months but less than 6 months @A EEDRINER - 2,551
Over 6 months NEA E - 692
6,343 4,659

Included in the accounts receivables are balances
of HK$4,308,000 (31 March 2015: HK$4,515,000) in
aggregate due from related companies.

FFAEWER R 2 FEWRBEEE AR 2 &
# 54,308,000 ;L (— T — A F
=+—H :4,515,00087T) °

A8
A

k=[113

—“T-REFHR ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT R AR

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 20156 H—Z—AFWA—HE_FT—HF+_-A=+—HHH

19. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Ageing of accounts receivable which are past due but
not impaired is as follows:

19. EWBRR (&)

B i BB KRB 2 8 U BR 3k 2 BR e 10
T

31 31

December March

2015 2015

—E-EF —T—RF

t+=A =A

=t-H =t—A

HK$000 HK$'000

FAET FET

1 — 30 days 1—30H 64 —
31 — 60 days 31 —60H — 692
64 692

At each reporting date, the Group first assesses
whether objective evidence of impairment exists
individually for its accounts receivable that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively
for accounts receivable that are not individually
significant. The Group also assesses collectively
for accounts receivable with similar credit risk
characteristics for impairment. The impaired
receivables, if any, are determined based on the
credit history of its customers, such as financial
difficulties or default in payments, and current
market conditions. Consequently, specific impairment
provision is recognised if the amount is determined to
be irrecoverable. Based on impairment assessment,
no impairment loss was recognised for the Group's
accounts receivable for the period ended 31 December
2015 and year ended 31 March 2015.

The Group did not hold any collateral as security
or other credit enhancements over the accounts
receivable, whether determined on an individual or
collective basis.

FEEEZERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

RERER  AEEELFEAELESE
BIEFAEERNEAZ ERARKER H
HRME - AR (BRI B A 2 B W R X
BRI EHIRBE NEE TR
EREE R R I AT O 2 MR SR A
BERHE - BREZ BKER(NE) T
BRERPZEEREDIM G & EM K
WEEHIE RN KR E R TR TEE © 8
b HEREEE ST AIWRE - QAR
REEREREE - RIFBENGE  8E
—T-RFTZA=t+—HIBEE#E
E_R-RF=RA=+—HILFEIE
FLANER B 2 R YR SRR EE 18 -

A S M B R B R
KBRS (AR R L S B 1R
FHEHE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 755 S o P

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 20156 H—F—AFWA—HE_FT—HF+_-A=+—HHH

20. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 20. &% - fE{ffIER HEW
RECEIVABLES FIE
31 31
December March
2015 2015
—B-FF —ZT—hF
+=A =A
=t-H =t—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets: ERBEE
— Tender deposits (note (a)) — RiERE (Mt (@) 8,359 8,861
— Deposits paid for acquisition of — KEARZEMES
companies (note (b)) (Bfs b)) 24,250 =
Deposits e 32,609 8,861
Current assets: HRBEE .
— Deposits (note (c)) — &e (M) 24,142 82
— Other receivables (note (d)) — HE WA (A2 () 33,660 8,420
— Prepayments — B FIE 2,741 30
60,543 8,532
93,152 17,393
Note (a): A tender deposit of RMB7,000,000 (equivalents Hiet(a) : ARRAREAEEZZ2ENBER

to approximately HK$8,359,000) was paid
to U-Home Group Limited (31 March 2015:
HK$8,861,000), a wholly owned subsidiary
of an executive director and the controlling
shareholder of the Company, by the Company
on behalf of a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group, Nanjing Tuoyu Property Management Co.
Ltd. (“Nanjing Tuoyu”), for bidding a contract
for the provision of consultancy and agency
business to U-Home Group Limited and its
associates. Nanjing Tuoyu succeeded in bidding
the tender on 24 March 2014. On 19 May
2014, Nanjing Tuoyu entered into a framework
agreement with U-Home Group Limited which
is valid for a period of three years commencing
from the date when the Company had obtained
independent shareholders’ approval on the
framework agreement and expiring on 31 March
2017. The tender deposit will be refunded within
7 business days after the expiry or termination
of the framework agreement.

—“T-REFHR ANNUAL REPORT 2015

AERETFEEXERERAA
((ERAFDRARRRTE
EREBRBREEHEZHBR
RAIFEEEAR QAL MEE
%+ AR ¥7,000,000 7 (&
478,359,000/ —F—H
#£=H=+—H :8,861,000/%
L) UBRERRFELEEERA
B R HE A A RIR LR R
REzaH  R-_ZT—mME=H
—+mA - EREFERNEE-
R-T—NERA+HIA @R
HFRFEEEBR ARG AR
i BARRBSBIARE
ERER G E I ERE B E
—E—+F=fA=t+—BItAH
=FEBY - JBITREERIERD
BEMKAR LR 7 ELEARNE
=l
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 755 S o P

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 20156 H—Z—AFWA—HE_FT—HF+_-A=+—HHH

20. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Note (b):

FREBZRERAR

On 30 October 2015, U-Home Enterprise
Development Company Limited (“UHEL"),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an agreement with Jiangsu Yide
Investment Company Limited (“Jiangsu Yide"),
an independent third party, pursuant to which
UHEL agreed to purchase and Jiangsu Yide
agreed to sell the sale capital, representing
100% equity interests in Wuhu Yizhou Trading
Company Limited (“Wuhu Yizhou") at an
aggregate consideration of HK$122,600,000.
During the current period, HK$24,000,000 has
been paid by UHEL in cash as a refundable
deposit which is included in “Deposits” under
non-current assets. As of 31 December 2015,
the acquisition of Wuhu Yizhou is not yet
completed. Details of the transaction have been
set out in the Company's circular dated 25
January 2016.

In addition, on 30 October 2015, the Company
entered into a letter of intent with La Clinique
de Paris International Ltd (“LCDPI") proposed
to acquire 25% interests of LCDPI, a high-end
health management company which is mainly
carrying out high-end health management,
advanced anti-aging, preventive and functional
medical services and sales of pharmaceuticals
and health supplements. During the current
period, HK$250,000 has been paid by the
Company in cash as a deposit which is included
in “Deposits” under non-current assets. As
set out in the Company’s announcement dated
7 December 2015, the Company entered into
a memorandum with LCDPIl and considers
changing the original acquisition of 25%
interests to a one-off acquisition of 60% at a
consideration which is expected not exceed
HK$150 million. Except for the letter of intent
and the memorandum, no other agreement in
respect of the acquisition was entered into by
the Group.

U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

20. B~ FARAEREMERK

5 (%)
HiaE(b)

RZE—RF+A=1+RH " &R
RAZE2EMBRARIFTEEEER
BRAB(FEEX)RBE
=R ERERR LRI
BREDITLH®E Bt F
¥EXREBEMIHSHERE
HEHERA  (FERRAEE
BRAR([EHRLRA])Z2100%
A HE - A E A 122,600,00058
TC o RAHIR - FEEEENUR
% X f1124,000,0007% JT 1E & 7
REES Wit AFERBEEZ
[Rel - R—B—HE+-A
=+—H  WEERRAEART
K o ZRSZHFBEHNRARAF
RfAE-_FT—"d—A=-+HH
2K o

N RZFE—RAF+A=F
H: & 2 7 HELla Clinique
de Paris International Ltd
(TLCDPINFTZEME - &K
FELCDPIZ25% iR # - Z A 7
A—EemEREREQR  £E
ETEamBRRER AENR
Z TEDBRE  DEEEREER
RS - AREE &M RREmR -
KRR RAFENRREX
{250,000 B T RIEE - Wat
AERBEEZ[ER] - #
ARRARBHMR-_ZE—HE+=
AtB2REME - RAAGFHE
LCDPIRI M 8% - W E R IR
FEURE 2 25% IR IESR B B — IR
MU EE60% @ TEEIRETEB
150,000,0008 7T - BREME &
HIRERSN - AR B M R U
BIER] M H A -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 755 S o P

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 20156 H—F—AFWA—HE_FT—HF+_-A=+—HHH

20. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Note (c):

Included in “Deposits” of HK$24,142,000
under current assets are deposits paid for the
acquisition of a piece of land in Australia as set
out below and tender deposits of HK$4,180,000
in aggregate paid for bidding a “Sole Agency
Contracts”.

On 9 April 2015, U-Home Oceania Pty
Ltd. ("UHOL"), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
sale and purchase agreement with Alphington
Developments Pty Ltd, a company incorporated
in Australia with limited liability (“Vendor"),
pursuant to which the Vendor agreed to sell
and UHOL agreed to acquire the land use right
over a land (the “Land’) at a consideration of
AUDS33,480,000 (inclusive of GST) (equivalent
to approximately HK$197,900,000) (the
“Acquisition”). The Group plans to build 108
medium to high density townhouses on the
Land. Up to the reporting date, HK$19,899,000
have been paid by UHOL in accordance with
the payment schedule as a deposit which is
included in “Deposits” under current assets. The
completion of the Acquisition is conditional upon
the fulfilment of all those conditions precedent
stated in the sale and purchase agreement (the
“CPs"). As of 31 December 2015, certain of the
CPs are not fulfilled.

During the current financial period, tender
deposits of HK$4,180,000 in aggregate was paid
by Nanjing Tuoyu to two property developers,
namely Jiangsu Yide, an independent third
party, and JIEFAMEBEGR AT (" JIE&FTHM"), a
company owned and controlled by an executive
director of the Company, for bidding a “Sole
Agency Contracts”. The tender deposits are
refundable within one month upon the sales
targets are met which have been refunded in
early 2016.

20. B~ FARAEREMERK

H(#&)
Biit(c) -

—“T-REFHR ANNUAL REPORT 2015

FARBEEZIRS |2
24,142,000 7 7T 4 St U2 58 R M
—E L H(EN T ) ZEMRE
R BRREANIZMZE
1Z¥2& 4 3£4,180,000%8 T °

R-ZZE—AFMANE K&
Bz EEE2EWB AR U-Home
Oceania Pty Limited([UHOL])
8 Alphington Developments
Pty Ltd([E 77 1+ —RHRIM
AMKRZZEREERAR)EIL
BEERE Bt BHRED
& MUHOL R & Uk B — 8 £ b
(M3t )z LB AR K
{& /33,480,000 8 7T (&2 3E /& M
PR 75 ) (48 % 74 49 197,900,000
B)((WEEE]) - AEBEG
BN Z T EEEI108MHRE
BEREHEE - REBHAIL
UHOLE RN R R X
19,899,000/ Lk Atk ® » I
ATARBAEZIIES ] - IiE
FIHAFERBEBEREME 2
B RRIEHEBERGEHED -
FERK - R—TE—RF+_-A
=+—R8  BFEREHEERE
ﬁjz o

RAMZEARE - mRATRER
[BRAESNIAMAXMEER
7 - BB E =75 T#EME - A
RARRB—BATEEEAR RE
B2 RABTHTMERXRERAA
(DIgTM DX M&REREa K
4,180,000/& 7 ° RIFLE AR
EYHERRR—EAREE
WERZF—RFFIRME -
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R AR

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 20156 H—F—AFWA—HE_T—HF+_-A=+—HHH

20. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Note (d):  As of 31 December 2015, a balance of
HK$3,072,000 (31 March 2015: HK$3,072,000),
derived from the disposal of the Group's
technical know-how in prior year was included
in “Other receivables”. The collectability of the
balance is subject to the fulfilment of certain
conditions set out in the project in which the
technical know-how was used for. The project is
still in progress at the reporting date.

Included in “Other receivables” of
HK$33,660,000, HK$18,916,000 representing
10% of the cost of the Land as detailed in
note (c) above, was paid by the Company as a
cash guarantee to the Vendor's solicitor, Kalus
Kenny Interlex, in accordance with the “Deed
of Guarantee and Indemnity” which is used to
secure the performance of the Company as a
guarantor. The balance is refundable upon the
completion of the Acquisition.

The carrying amounts of deposits and other receivables
are considered a reasonable approximation of fair

20. B~ FARAEREMERK

5 (%)

#it(@: WMW-_E-—HFEF+_-_A=+—
B b A K B R A
P 2 W 2% #4 %8 %33,072,00078
TN —E-—RAF=A=+—8:
3,072,000/ 7T ) Jh st A H th f&
YRR | o sz 8RR R A] @ 17
R Raz it a2 8 B s 2
HTIRIFERR - TAMEE © %
HERKRE B BMDEETS -

ST E AU kB |~ 33,660,000
7 JT 0 18,916,000 T * 1§ k
3Bt FE () BT it 8% & M AR AR 2
10% @ JyE AR AR IE B A E
RAERBEAERAZREZ
[ERRAEARAE R 2 &
Kalus Kenny Interlex 15 #E/5
FEER - BREBRTTRTERIK
BERIEGRE -

Be REMREFIR REERRSA
FEZAENH -

value.

21. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH 21. EEHEBTERAREBESRERES

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EEW
31 31
December March
2015 2015
—E-EHF I TS
+=A =A
=t—H =+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Cash and bank balances Re RRITHER 62,347 52,208
Time deposits EHTF 135,000 100,000
Less: Pledged bank deposits B BERBRITER - (100,000)
Cash and cash equivalents HBeMReEEY 197,347 52,208

FEEEZERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 755 S o P

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 20156 H—F—AFWA—HE_FT—HF+_-A=+—HHH

21.

22.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

Time deposits earned 0.3% to 0.5% (for the period
ended 31 March 2015: 0.5%) interest per annum. As of
31 December 2015, none of the deposits are pledged
for security. As of 31 March 2015, the time deposits
of HK$100,000,000 had been pledged to secure the
Group’s bank borrowings of HK$100,000,000 which
had been fully repaid in April 2015.

The directors of the Company considered that the fair
value of time deposits was not materially different
from its carrying amount.

As at 31
bank balances of the Group are bank balances of
HK$7,336,000 (31 March 2015: HK$3,428,000)
denominated in RMB placed with banks in the PRC.
Under the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations

December 2015, included in cash and

and Administration of Settlement and Sales and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group
is permitted to exchange RMB for foreign currencies
through the banks that are authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Ageing analysis of accounts payable, based on invoice
dates, is as follows:

21.

22.

CHEFETEARESREAS
EEWE)

THERBFEMHRIRZAEH03% 2
06%(HBE-_ZT—HE=ZA=1+—8
IEEAE 1 05%) - R=ZZFE—HF+=A
=t+—H BERsTUAERAEER
MR- E—RAF=ZA=+—0 " &
£ 3£100,000,000 %8 ;L 2 T4 - LAE
RAEE 2 $R7TE 100,000,000 7% 7T
(ER_Z—AFMAZEEE) -

ARBEEAR/EMER A FERE
FREETEEAZR -

R-ZEBE—RE+-_A=+—10 K&
B 2R e RIRITE R 157,336,000
B ZCE—AHAHE=ZA=Z+—8:
3,428,000 L) 2 RITHEHR I UAR
KB ERTFHAFRBEZRTT - BIFEFR
ZHINEB RN RAEE  EERMGES
BT AEEREERCRELEINE
HBMEBZBITBARELBRABENE
‘ﬁg o

FEAY BR X

ENERBBEEZEH KRR THA
T

31 31

December March

2015 2015

“E-hF

+=A =A

=t+-H =+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Within 3 months =EAR 2,001 —
Over 3 months but within 6 months @AM EELRANEA 367 —
2,368 —
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(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 20156 H—F—AFWA—HE_T—HF+_-A=+—HHH

22.

23.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (continued)

Accounts payable as of 31 December 2015 were non-
interest bearing. Included in the accounts payable is
a balance of HK$2,062,000 due to a related company,
namely EREFEREMER AT CEREFT") (note
29).

SHARE CAPITAL

22. BRERFR (&)

R-ZE—RAFE+-_A=+—HZEMNE
FRTAE B o s AN R Z FE U —
A AR AR ETFRERMG AR QA
([EREF]) 2 &5 /52,062,000% T
(Hf3£29) »

23. BRA

31 December 2015

31 March 2015

—2-Af+ZA=+-H “T-R§=fA=1+-H
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
R EE &8 RingE i
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of SREE.0ELL
HK$0.01 each Limk 10,000,000,000 100,000 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BERTRARE
Ordinary shares of BREE.0ELL
HK$0.01 each Lk
At 1 April RMA—H 1,640,000,000 16,400  1,640,000,000 16,400
Issue of shares upon open AR ERZEITAG
offer (Note) (Hizt) 820,000,000 8,200 — —
At 31 December/31 March W +=A=+—H/
=RA=t+—H 2,460,000,000 24,600  1,640,000,000 16,400
Note: Hia -

Upon the completion of the open offer on 18 September
2015, 820,000,000 offer shares were issued on the basis
of one offer share for every two existing shares held on
24 August 2015 by the qualifying shareholders at the
subscription price of HK$0.26 per offer share, which has
resulted to the increase in share capital and share premium
of approximately HK$8,200,000 and HK$202,728,000
respectively. The related share issue expenses of
approximately HK$2,272,000 were dealt with in the share
premium account.

FEEEZERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

RZZE—RAFALATN\BEXRAREE%
820,000,000% & &€ ik p B 17+ E A
AABRREN-_ZE—HENRA=-+MA
BRAMBRRERNDESE —REERD
REEBAERZTERHD0.268T  BER
7R K R 7k B 9 B35 0 498,200,000 % JT
$%.202,728,0007 70 - BEARM FETHIZA
2,272,000 JhRA B (0 s (B BR R 3R ©
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(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H-E—hAFWMA—HEZ-_T—AF+-_A=+—HHHE

24, RESERVES

The Group

Please refer to the consolidated statement of changes

in equity on pages 46 to 47 for reserves of the Group.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Contributed surplus

Pursuant to the corporate reorganisation
of the Group during 2002 to 2003 (the
“Reorganisation”), the Company became the
holding company of the Group on 24 September
2003. The excess of the consolidated net
assets represented by the shares acquired
over the nominal value of the shares issued
by the Company in exchange under the
Reorganisation was transferred to contributed
surplus. The balance is available for distribution
to shareholders subject to the provision under
section 54 of the Companies Act of Bermuda.

Asset revaluation reserve

The balance as at 31 December 2015 and 31
March 2015 are related to the revaluation of
owner-occupied property upon reclassification to
investment property during the year ended 31
March 2011.

Share premium

This represents the premium arising from the
issue of shares, net of placing expenses.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the relevant PRC rule and
regulations, one subsidiary of the Company is
required to appropriate certain percentage of
its profits after tax to the respective statutory
reserve. Subject to certain restrictions as set
out in the relevant PRC regulation, the statutory
reserve may be used to make good previous
losses, if any, or to increase the paid—up capital
of the respective subsidiary, any may be used for
capital expenditure on staff welfare facilities, as
appropriate.

24. t#E
AEM

BRASEZ#E

F2HEI6FE4T

AZiraRa8E X -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

BABE

BERZZZT_FI =T =F2
AEBLESHTEAR]D AR
ARZZEE=FNAZTHKBAE
SEZERATR - FIERG TS
RizGEEFEBEARARRESE
HBEITNMER M IR 2 BB 2%
B ABERARER o AT
ERRE DK + EEAXBREARTE
E DA GHTERR -

BEEGHE

REZE—_ZT——F=A=+—HI
FERNENOBERREME®R -
TRt A=FT—AHAKZ=ZE
—RFEZA=+—AzEBESRE
EXEAMEER-

B EE

BTy EITROAEL 2 & E (K
FEMX) °

EERE

KEAEEPEARKMBIERE
B BRARB —KHER AR
—EAN MR REMNERESBH
EERME - RIBEFEARLMBENE
BTN — LR - SAEME
ARARAREENBR(IA) » %
EIMEARSENEREAN - F
] MR B AR F R e Y B AR B S AR
RIEEIA o
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(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 EE:@—E@EH-EI?:%?*EEJFZH =+—HHH

24. RESERVES (Continued) 24. RE#E)
The Company P NN
Retained
profits/
Share  Contributed (Accumulated
premium surplus losses) Total
REBRA/
iR ME AR (REER) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FAET
At 1 April 2014 RZE—EFEMA—H 66,909 82,180 (117,390) 31,699
Profit for the year FRmfl — — 1,626 1,626
At 31 March 2015 and R-ZE-EF=A=1+-BK
1 April 2015 —Z-A¥MA-H 66,909 82,180 (115,764) 33,325
Issues of shares upon open AFBERRITRHA
offer 202,728 - - 202,728
Loss for the period HREE - - (2,999) (2,999)
At 31 December 2015 RZB-AF+=-A=+-H 269,637 82,180 (118,763) 233,054

114 FEEFERARAT U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 20156 H—F—AFWMA—HE_T—HF+_-A=+—HHH

25. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT

OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT

31 DECEMBER 2015

25. ERATR=-E—HFETZH
=+ —H 2z RE

31 31
December March
2015 2015
—E-REF —T-RF
+=A =8
=t+—H =+—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
i FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries BERKIBRR 82,388 82,388
Deposits ®wé 8,609 8,861
90,997 91,249
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries = PNGIE R 123,183 62,194
Deposits, prepayments and other &%  ANZEK
receivables H fth e W FR0R 2,113 4,257
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEFEY 186,031 2,382
311,327 68,833
Current liabilities nEaE
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN NGIE R 144,060 104,912
Accrued expenses and other fERTE R R E MRS RIA
payables 610 5,445
144,670 110,357
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE/(BE)FE 166,657 (41,524)
Net assets EERE 257,654 49,725
EQUITY R
Share capital B 23 24,600 16,400
Reserves ] 24 233,054 33,325
Total equity RERAH 257,654 49,725
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT R AR

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H=ZE—hAFWMA—HEZ-_T—HAF+-_A=+—H8HH)

26. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015 are

as follows:

Name of company

DNEAAR

Place of
incorporation and
kind of legal entity
AR B 3L e B
REEERER

26.

Particulars of issued
and paid up capital
ERTR
BRRAFE

R B A Bz s

AARZHBRAAN -_Z—RAF+_-A
=t+t—BZ2#HBWT :

Percentage

of ownership
interests

held by the
Company
APAREZ
BEEEZEOML

Principal activities and
place of operation

TEXBREXBY

Jiwa Development Co. Ltd.
("JDL")

Jiwa International Limited
BEEEERAF

Tech-Medi Development
Limited

EREERZEERAR
Jiwa Pharm & Chemicals
Limited

BEBELIBRAA

Rise Hill Development Limited

Base Affirm International
Limited (“Base Affirm”)

U-Home Group Development
Company Limited

UHEL

BVI, limited liability
company

RBRUES
BRART]

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

DOREL N

Hong Kong, limited
liahility company

BE  BRRA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

BE  ARAR

BVI, limited liability
company

EERTHS
BRAF

BVI, limited liability
company

EBRZHS
BRAH

BVI, limited liability
company

BERAEE
BRAH

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

&% BRAA

FEEEZERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

50,000 ordinary shares 100%*

of United States

dollar (“US$") 1 each

50,000 &R EE
(ESA(EIH )P4
Limi

HK$1,000,000

1,000,000 7T

HK$200,000

200,000/ 7T

HK$1,000,000

1,000,000 7T

1,000 ordinary shares
of US$1 each

1,000 R B RRE &
1R AR

1,000 ordinary shares
of US$1 each

1,000 RBREE
1ZTZEBR

1 ordinary share of
US$1
1REE 1T
LRl

HK$100

100/87C

100%

100%

100%

60%

100%

100%*

100%

Investment holding,
Hong Kong

REZE - &R

Investment holding,
Hong Kong
RERR - &BE

Trading of health care
products and chemical
materials, Hong Kong

BEERREEMR
L2 - BA

Investment holding and
trading of chemical
materials, Hong Kong

REZERREE(LZ
MR BE

Not yet commence
business

HARBER

Research and
development

MR RFAHE

Investment holding,
Hong Kong
REEZR B

Investment holding and
trading of chemical
materials, Hong Kong

REZRREEZ

BH B
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(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H=_ZE—hAFWMA—HEZ-_T—AF+-_A=+—H0HH)

26. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 26. RMB AR 2= (#7)

Percentage
of ownership
Place of interests
incorporation and Particulars of issued held by the Principal activities and
Name of company kind of legal entity ~ and paid up capital Company place of operation
TEMAR 4 2 BERTR b UNGIESE = od
ARER REEERER BRRAFE REREZANN TEEBREERY
U-Home Property Management Hong Kong, limited HK$100 100% Investment holding,
and Consultancy Co. Limited  liability company Hong Kong
& ARAR 100 7T REZKR &S
Nanjing Tuoyu PRC, limited liability ~ Renminbi ("RMB") 100% Property consultancy
company 2,000,000 and agency business
and trading building
materials, PRC
HREF HE - BRAR ARE(ARE]) MR RATHIE RS
2,000,000 AREERENE
Rle
U-Home International BVI, limited liability 1,000 ordinary share of 100%* Investment holding, BVI
Enterprises Limited company US$1
HERAHS - 1,000 R B R EE REZK  REREZES
BRAR 1R EBR
UHOL Australia, limited 100 ordinary share of  100% Property development,
liability company Australian Dollar Australia
("AUD")1
BN BRAR 100 REREE 1R MEER BN
(MR7T)) 2 Bk
@ Issued capital held directly by the Company * BARREERA 2B BITRA
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities BMENE AR N AN BUHEIM R EFET
during the current financial period and last year. FMEREE A o
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(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 A-F—hAFMA—HE-T—AF+-A=+—HHHE)

27. COMMITMENTS 27. &I
(a) Operating lease commitments (a) REHERIE

At 31 December 2015, the total future minimum RZE—RAF+-_A=+—H " K
lease payments payable by the Group under non- SEBRBENA R LB ELH

cancellable operating leases are as follows: BENRZEEEFIARZENT ¢

31 31

December March

2015 2015

—E-EHF I TS

+=A =A

=t—H =+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Within 1 year —FR 151 223

After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFRA 157 89

308 312
The Group leases a number of properties under AEERBELKEHERRETY
operating leases. The lease runs for a period of ¥ ZREHECFHAEMEERF
two to five years (31 March 2015: two to five ZE-hF=A=+—H: WF
years). None of the lease includes contingent ERF)ZERYBMELIENAT

rentals. & e
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(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H-FE—AFMA—HEZ-ZT—AF+-A=+—HHH)

27. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Operating lease arrangements

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had future
aggregate minimum lease receipts under non-
cancellable operating leases as follows:

27. EiEE)

(b)

KERERY
NR—_E—FRE+-_A=+—H &
SERBENAHREEHEETHR
ZEEBEFRIAELBEINT

31 31

December March

2015 2015

—E-AHF —T—nF

+=A =A

=t-H =t—A

HK$000 HK$'000

FET T

Within 1 year —FR 80 960
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERERN - 80
80 1,040

During the period, the Group leased out its
investment property to Eden (Swiss) and
Meilleure under operating lease arrangements
which run for a period of three months to two
years (for the year ended 31 March 2015: one
month to two years). The tenancy agreement
with Meilleure has ended on 31 December 2015
and there is no renewal of the agreement up to
the reporting date.

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had capital
commitments contracted for but not provided for
in these financial statement which are as follows:

(c)

R ASERBEEHEHER
Eden (Swiss) & Meilleure i # E % &
M FHAZEAZRE(HZE
—E—RF=A=+—HItFE:
—fAAZMF) - & Meilleure Z
HEWw=2ECN -_TE—hE+=A
=+—H&E mEEREBHA
LIEW BT % e o

B AR EYE

R-TE—FaEFE+=-_A=+—H " &
EEBE R A NMEL RPERE B
ERRAETN BE 2 EAASENT ¢

Acquisition of the Land (note 20(c)) U B % + 3t (H1 5 20(c))

Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 20(b)) KB —FEMI B R (A1 20(b))

31 31
December March
2015 2015
“E-RF “E-hF
+=A =A
=+—H =+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
170,246 —
98,600 —
268,846 —
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28. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 10 November 2015, the Company through JDL,
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a sale and purchase agreement (the “Disposal
Agreement”) with Sunny Enterprises, to dispose
its entire 100% equity interests in a subsidiary of
the Group, namely Jiwa Rintech Holdings Limited
("JRHL") which held 100% direct equity interests in
Sino-Tech International (Macao Commercial Offshore)
Limited (“Sino-Tech”) for a cash consideration of
HK$1,650,000. The disposal was completed on 30
November 2015.

The carrying amounts of the net assets of JRHL at the
disposal date of 30 November 2015 were as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 755 S o P

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H=ZE—hAFWMA—HEZ-_T—HAF+-_A=+—H8HH)

8. HE—EMNEAA

RZZT—AF+—A+H A27GE
BARABZZ2ENERAJIDL) BX
BRI VEEHA(THEHZE] -
NEEERAEE—HEHE QA Jiwa
Rintech Holdings Limited ([JRHL])
ZEE100% ik - ZAREAIER
BRORMIBEFEmERE) BRARTH
EDZ100%EZRE BeREAR
1,650,000 L ZHEFER - F
—REFt+—A=t+AZ=AK -

R-_ZE-—AF+—-A=+BHZHEH
Hi - JRHLZ BEFEZREENT :

HK$'000
FEIT
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReEEY 985
Other receivables o fth FE UL SR IR 22
Amounts due from related companies JEUEAEE A T 5B 3,707
Accrual and other payables FEET I R HAtb FE T 5B (4)
Amounts due to related companies JE A< B HE A B FIE (4,563)
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE 147
Gain on disposal of JRHL HE JRHL 2 Jz 1,503
Total HEt 1,650
Satisfied by: AR
Cash consideration RENRE 1,650
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HESHEA 2 FHRSRAFE
Cash consideration BeRE 1,650
Cash and cash equivalents FItEReRBEeEED
disposed of (985)
Net inflow of cash and cash Re RBeFEMRAFE
equivalents 665

FEEEZERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H=_ZE—hAFWMA—HEZ-_T—AF+-_A=+—H0HH)

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

Related party transactions:

Excepted as disclosed elsewhere in the financial
statements, the Group entered into the following

transactions with related parties:

29. BBERS

(a)

BBARS

SRR RSB REEIN
HEEATETATEARS ¢

e 3

Related party
relationship Name of related party Type of transaction Transaction amount Balance owed/{owing)
BYrBE CEVES RA%H R5tE &r/(Bh)E%
For the
period from
1 April For the
2015 t0 year ended
31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March
2015 2015 2015 2015
H-5-1f
MA-RZE gz
ZE-3f -1
tZA=t-H ZA=t-H ZE-1E “3-1
i t¥8 tZB=t-B %=A=1-H
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000
Fén AT Fén FAT
Common director  MFHREZERBRAT (i) Agency senvice income - 1,115 - 370
LRES RERBRA
Common director ~ EUFEEZERAF (il Agency service income - 1,072 - 47
LEES RERBERA
Common diector ~ BNFHEZARAT (il Agency service income = 3446 = 2,087
LEES RERERA
Common diector ~ EHTHHERRAT (il Agency senvice income 2,509 2532 1118 1,581
LRES RERBRA
Common director ~ T&FA (il Agency service income 3,256 = 2715 =
LRES RERBRA
Common director  IHFHREZERAA (il Agency service income 3742 = 475 =
ARES RERBRA
Common director ~ ENFHEHEFEBRAA () Agency service income 3,006 = (305) =
AFES RERBMA
Common director ~ EMETRERHERLT () Sales of bulding materials 3133 = = =
AFEZ EERENH
Common diector ~ BRRTEXERMARAT (i) Cost of services provided 627 = = =
AfES RS 2R A
Common director ~ FHEZERAA (i Prepayment for management service = = 300 =
AfEZ BRI BB
Common director ~ Eden (Swiss) (i) Rental income 540 960 2 960
L AEUA
Common director ~ Meilleure (i) Rental income 60 - 2 -
Lg% i 0
Common director ~ HRFAHEERAF (il Rental paid 3 35 - (34)
LRES B
Common diector ~ BRET (il Purchase of leasehold improvements 4,119 = (2,458) * —
P FREHEEE
& The balance payable tofRfEF is amounted to ENEREFTZE®A

HK$2,458,000, of which, HK$2,062,000 is trading
in nature and included in “Accounts payable”
(note 22). The remaining of HK$396,000 is
recorded in “Accrued expenses and other

payables” as of 31 December 2015.

2,458,0007% JT » H A12,062,000
BITBESMEY Wit AIES
BE 2K (P 5E£22) » # T 396,000
BTN E—RE+ A
=t+—RAZ[EFERREMER
FKIB e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT R AR

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H=ZE—hAFWMA—HEZ-_T—HAF+-_A=+—H8HH)

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(a) Related party transactions: (Continued)

Notes:

(i) MMNFREEZRERER AT, BILFEBEERA
A, BMMNFMEEBRAR, BEHFHHLEERAD
B, IHBTFN, IHFREFARQE, BMNFEHE
WEREARAR, MREF, ARFHMBERERA
A and EREFEEELMBR AT are companies
owned and controlled by Mr. Zhou Xuzhou, the
director of the Company.

(i) FERHNFEXEEHRERAR, FHREEXEARAQ
a], Eden (Swiss) and Meilleure are companies
owned and controlled by Ms. Zhou Wen Chuan,
the director of the Company.

(iii)  The amounts outstanding in respect of these
related parties’ transactions from/(to) those
related parties are interest free, unsecured and
repayable on demand. All outstanding balances
will be settled in cash. The Group has not made
any provision for bad or doubtful debts in respect
of related party debtors nor has any guarantee
been given or received during the current and
last financial periods regarding related party
transactions.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel

Remuneration of directors and other members of
key management during the period/year are as
follows:

(a)

(b)

29. BEERARZ (#)

BBAERS - (&)
Hiet -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

MWINTFREXEREGRAR &
WFEERERAT - BIMFH
EXERAR BHTHMER
RAA - IHTM  ITEHTRE
EERAR - #RINFHFHER
BERDA)  ARART ERAT
i 3 EE A PR N B R F iR TR
KHMHBRATMARTESEFHM
MR LS -

HARETFEXBMAERAR - F
HEZEAMRARF - Eden (Swiss)
K Meilleure BN A R1E HFA X
M Z LA R -

R ERE T 2 5 RN (AT
ZERB T ZREERARR
B EEAYW AR ERER - A
BEAREEEREARIEE - A
R B0 L R B 07 (BAE AR R
BCHAR] Ko — BA K HA 8 G R R B
TR ST T AR AL FE (R
ZRIFFRAEH A BHE

TEEBEABZHE

/90 BEEREMTIEERE
REZBEMT

For the

period from
1 April 2015 For the
to 31 year ended
December 31 March
2015 2015

H=Z-—X1fF

mE—HZ H=E
—E—FE —E—REF
+=8 =
=+—HHHE IFFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET

Fee, salaries and other allowances  #4% - $14& K E )28, 1,963 2,228

Contributions to defined contribution EZE{EFRET 27 43k
plans 25 20
1,988 2,248

FEEEZERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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SRR M

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H=_ZE—hAFWMA—HEZ-_T—AF+-_A=+—H0HH)

30. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

AND LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

Set out below is an overview of the carrying amount

and fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
held by the Group as defined in note 3.7.

TREHIMEI7TAAEAEERFFZ
MBEERMBGEF ZREERAFE

2R

30. MBEEREBIERE

31 31
December March
2015 2015
—2-hF “T-AF
+=A =A
=t-H =t—A8
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial assets BMBEE
Loans and receivables: ERRERRE
— Accounts receivable — R 6,343 4,659
— Deposits and other receivables — ke RECREKIA 87,339 14,291
— Pledged bank deposits — BERBRITER - 100,000
— Cash and cash equivalents — ReRREFED 197,347 52,208
291,029 171,158
Financial liabilities BHEE
Financial liabilities measured at amortised 1z # R AT E 2
costs: BB RE -
— Bank borrowings — RITER - 100,000
— Accounts payable — R 2,368 —
— Accrued expenses and other — EFBAR
payables HyERNFRIE 8,768 10,595
11,136 110,595

No financial instruments held by the Group as of 31
March 2015 and 31 December 2015 are measured at

fair value.

Financial instruments not measured at fair value
include accounts receivable and payable, deposits
and other receivables, bank balances and cash, bank
borrowings, accrued expenses and other payables. Due
to their short term nature, the carrying value of these
financial instruments approximates fair value.

AEER-_T-—RAF=A=+—HE=
E-RFT-_A=T—HHEESFEER

FEHEZSMTA -

AEBEAFEAENSBR IABERK N
RN AR - W RETRWGRIE - )17
mgkRe RITEK
CTERMNKE - ERZEZERTAHR

FERTE R AME

M HREEEROIAYE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 755 S o P

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H=ZE—hAFWMA—HEZ-_T—HAF+-_A=+—H8HH)

31.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its
use of financial instruments in its ordinary course
of operations. The financial risks include market risk
(including currency risk and interest risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the
Group's headquarters, in close co-operation with
the directors of the Company. Overall objectives in
managing financial risks focus on securing the Group’s
short to medium term cash flows by minimising its
exposure to financial markets. Long-term financial
investments are managed to generate lasting returns
with acceptable risk levels.

The finance department works under the financial risk
management policies approved by the directors of the
Company. It identifies ways to access financial markets
and monitors the Group's financial risk exposures.
Regular reports are provided to the directors of the
Company.

31.1 Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates.

The Group mainly operates and invests in Hong
Kong, the PRC and Australia with most of the
transactions denominated and settled in HKS,
RMB and AUD respectively. No foreign currency
risk has been identified for the financial assets
and liabilities as they were denominated in a
currency same as the functional currencies of the
group entities to which these transactions relate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H=_ZE—hAFWMA—HEZ-_T—AF+-_A=+—H0HH)

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

31.2 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group's interest rate risk
arises primarily from bank balances and bank
borrowings. As of 31 December 2015, the Group
had no bank borrowings, the interest rate risk on
the bank balances are considered minimal as they
are short-term instruments with maturities of
less than three month. As the Group has minimal
exposure to interest rate risk as of 31 December
2015, no interest rate sensitivity analysis is
disclosed.

As of 31 March 2015, the bank borrowings
bearing floating rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate
risk respectively. It was estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 1% in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, would decrease/
increase the Group's profit by approximately
HK$835,000.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 755 S o P

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 =% —

31

. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

31.3 Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instrument and cause a financial loss to the
Group.

The credit risk mainly arises from granting credit
to customers in the ordinary course of operations
and from its investing activities.

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by
rigorously selecting the counterparties. Credit risk
on cash and cash equivalents is mitigated as cash
is deposited in banks of high credit rating. Credit
risk on receivables is minimised as the Group
performs ongoing evaluation on the financial
condition of its debtors and tightly monitors
the ageing of its receivable balances. Follow up
action is taken in case of overdue balances. In
addition, management reviews the recoverability
of receivables individually and collectively at
each reporting date to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts.

As disclosed in note 7, a significant portion
of Group's sales are made to several major
customers. These customers made continuous
settlements with the Group and therefore,
management believes that the credit risk as at
31 December 2015 and 31 March 2015 on the
amounts due was minimal.

The credit policies have been consistently applied
and are considered to be effective in limiting the
Group’s exposure to credit risk to a desirable
level.

FEEEZERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H=_ZE—hAFWMA—HEZ-_T—AF+-_A=+—H0HH)

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

31.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group
will not be able to meet its obligations associated
with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or other financial assets. The
Group is exposed to liquidity risk in respect
of settlement of accounts payable, accrued
expenses and other payables, and also in respect
of its cash flow management. The Group's
objective is to maintain an appropriate level of
liquid assets and committed lines of funding to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
long term.

The Group manages its liquidity needs on a
consolidated basis by carefully monitoring
scheduled debt servicing payments for long-
term financial liabilities as well as forecast cash
inflows and outflows due in day to day business.
Liquidity needs are monitored in various time
bands, on a day to day and week to week
basis, as well as on the basis of a rolling 30 day
projection. Long-term liquidity needs for a 90-
day and 180-day lookout period are identified
monthly. Net cash requirements are compared to
available borrowing facilities in order to determine
headroom or any shortfalls. This analysis shows
if available borrowing facilities are expected to be
sufficient over the lookout period.

The Group maintains cash and short-term bank
deposits to meet its liquidity requirements for 30
day periods at a minimum. Funding for longer-
term liquidity needs is additionally secured by an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities
and the ability to sell longer-term financial assets.
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(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H=ZE—hAFWMA—HEZ-_T—HAF+-_A=+—H8HH)

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

31.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

The liquidity policies have been consistently
applied by the Group and are considered to have
been effective in managing liquidity risks.

Analysed below is the Group’s remaining
contractual maturities for its non-derivative
financial liabilities as at 31 December 2015 and
31 March 2015. When the creditor has a choice
of when the liability is settled, the liability is
included on the basis of the earliest date on
when the Group can be required to pay. Where
the settlement of the liability is in instalments,
each instalment is allocated to the earliest period
in which the Group is committed to pay.

Specifically, for term-loans which contain a
repayment on demand clause which can be
exercised at the bank’'s sole discretion, the
analysis shows the cash outflow based on
the earliest period in which the Group can be
required to pay, that is if the lenders were to
invoke their unconditional rights to call the loans
with immediate effect. The maturity analysis for
other bank borrowings is prepared based on the
scheduled repayment dates.

FEEEZERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M

(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 20156 H—ZE—AFMA—BE -"T—AFE+_A=+—HHH)

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 31.
(Continued)

BERARER#)

31.4 Liquidity risk (Continued) 31.4 RBELER(E)

WA IRIEM I AE 2 RAEIRR
EREFH -

The analysis is based on the undiscounted cash
flows of the financial liabilities.

At 31 December 2015

R-ZE—ARF+=-H=+—H

Contractual
On Within undiscounted Carrying
demand one year cash flow amount
ERREH
REX PR-—F ReRE BREE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE FET FET FET
Non-derivatives FiT4E
Accounts payable FEFT RN - 2,368 2,368 2,368
Accrued expenses and s BR REMER
other payables FIE 8,768 - 8,768 8,768
8,768 2,368 11,136 11,136
At 31 March 2015 R=B-HF=A=+—H
Contractual
On Within  undiscounted Carrying
demand one year cash flow amount
BHRER
REX PR Rene BREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FAT FAET
Non-derivatives FiT4E
Bank borrowings BITER 100,000 — 100,000 100,000
Accrued expenses and st B R REMER
other payables Foa 10,595 = 10,595 10,595
110,595 — 110,595 110,595
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(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 B —Z—

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

31.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

FREBZR

The following table summarises the maturity
analysis of term loans with repayment on
demand clause based on the agreed scheduled
repayments set out in the loan agreements. The
amounts included interest payments computed
using contractual rates. Taking into account the
Group’s financial position, the directors did not
consider that it was probable that the banks will
exercise their discretion to demand immediate
repayment. The term loans had been fully repaid
in April 2015.

Maturity analysis of term loans subject to a
repayment on demand clause based on scheduled
repayments is as follows:

RFENA—BE"

—hAFt+ A=+ H#H)

1. BKEREEZ)

31.4 RBELERE)

TRBAMEEREREEGRZE
HE IR & S0 5 P L 17 E TR
ERELZBHBDN - ZEHE
BEAEHNEFEZMEM -
REBAKE BN - EFR
RIRITRAARETT BB R R
BIRFEE - ZEEHMEREN_F
—hFMOAEHEER

BREERPON 2 A RERE
if R EHERBH A 540

undiscounted On
cash flows demand
RBBERE
REMAHE BEK
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
31 December 2015 —E-RF+=-H=+—H — _
31 March 2015 —RAF=A=+—H 100,000 100,000
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(For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 H=_ZE—hAFWMA—HEZ-_T—AF+-_A=+—H0HH)

32. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 32. EXEHEEE

The Group's objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as going
concern in order to provide returns for the shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital
and to support the Group's stability and growth.

The Group monitors its capital structure and make
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristic of the underlying
assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, issue new shares, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debts. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes
during the current financial period and last year.
Management regards total equity as capital for capital
management purpose.

The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by total equity. Net debt
is calculated as bank borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents and pledged bank deposits as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The Group
aims to maintain the gearing ratio at a reasonable level.

As the Group is in a net cash position at the reporting
dates of 31 December 2015 and 31 March 2015, the
gearing ratio has not been presented.

As disclosed in note 24(iv), a subsidiary of the Group
is required by the relevant laws and regulations of
the PRC to contribute and maintain non-distributable
statutory reserve. Except for the above, there is no
other externally imposed capital requirement of the
Group for the current financial period and last year.
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Nine months

Year ended 31 March ended
BE-A=T-HILFE 31 December
2012 2013 2014 2015 2015
gz
+=A
=t-AL
“F--% ZE-=fF C—EF-QNF C—E-1f hiBA
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FETL FET FET
Revenue Yozt 203,787 35,648 35,079 9,336 57,003
Profit from operation R 37,921 16,396 95,785 3,103 19,138
Finance costs BEARAK (3,404) (4,435) (1,401) (351) -
Share of results of associates EBER%E 40,737 35,352 27,135 = -
Profit before income tax expense BR 1S BEAT & A 75,254 47,313 121,619 2,752 19,138
Income tax expense RS (4,636) (5,559) (32,302) (769) (11,406)
Profit for the year FREF 70,618 41,754 89,217 1,983 7,732
Attributable to T AT
Owners of the Company KRREBA 70,620 41,754 89,219 1,981 7,734
Non-controlling interests FERRER (2) = (2) 2 (2)
70,618 41,754 89,217 1,983 7,732
Assets and liabilities and BERAGER
non-controlling interests FEE RS
Total assets BESE 932,953 872,449 207,420 208,909 335,293
Total liabilities aEgE (328,370) (256,512) (112,206) (111,670) (20,378)
Non-controlling interests R RER 6 6 8 6 8
604,589 615,943 95,222 97,245 314,923

FEEFERAR AT U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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